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Founded in 2001, Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (“Sihuan
Pharmaceutical” or the “Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”) achieved sound development in the past years and has now
become a pharmaceutical corporation with leading capabilities in research
and development (“R&D"), sales and marketing and production. Sihuan
Pharmaceutical has been the largest cardio-cerebral vascular (“CCV”) drug
franchise in China’s prescription drug market since 2007. Its major products
such as Kelinao, Oudimei, Yuanzhijiu, Chuanging and Qu’Ao are widely used

in the treatment of various CCV diseases.

Sihuan Pharmaceutical marked its sixteenth year in 2016. The Group
maintained its top position in the CCV prescription drug market and has grown
into the fourth largest pharmaceutical company in China’s hospital market in
terms of hospital purchase. The Group achieved encouraging progress in new
drugs R&D in recent years. Over 80 new drugs are under developing, multiple
innovative patented new drugs entered into clinical trials, dozens of generic
projects filed application for production approval. The Group’s current products
and R&D pipeline encompass the top five medical therapeutic areas in China:

CCV system, central nervous system, metabolism, oncology and anti-infectives.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BUSINESS REVIEW

In the first half of 2016, the industry faced stronger controls over
excessive medical insurance expenditures. Governments of various
regions announced their “Key Monitored Drug List” (F B B % 45
H #%), in which oncology and CCV drugs have become hospitals” major
targets for budget control. In addition, core products Kelinao/Anjieli
are no longer exclusive drugs of the Group. Confronted with competing
products with the same chemical entity, the Group lowered the selling
prices of Kelinao/Anjieli to incentivize distributors. Prices of competing
products have also been reduced to various degrees for the same reason.
In April 2016, the State Council of the People’s Republic of China (the
“State Council”) announced the “Notice of the General Office of the
State Council on Issuing the Major Tasks in 2016 in the Deepening of
the Reform of the Medical and Health Care System” (SCS 2016, no.26),

'in central

requiring implementation of the “Two-Invoice System”
drug procurement for public hospitals. The State Council plans to roll
out the “Two-Invoice System” nationally, first in 11 provinces and then
move on to the rest of the country, which is causing distributors to
inventory destocking, resulting in a drop in the sales of products. The
aforementioned factors led to the Group’s first negative growth in history
with revenue and profit attributable to owners of the Company decteasing
by 21.8% and 49.3% year-on-year, respectively. Excluding the one-off
investment income for the same period last year, profit attributable to

owners of the Company decreased by 18.6% year-on-year.

Despite the severity of market conditions, fundamentals of Sihuan
Pharmaceutical’s operation in China’s CCV prescription drug market
remained solid. According to data of IMS Health Incorporated, the Group
maintained its top position in the CCV prescription drug market in
terms of hospital purchase during the six months ended 30 June 2016 (the
“Period”), with its market share reaching 11.9%, ranking it the fourth in

the overall hospital market in China.

Under the “Two-Invoice System”, a drug manufacturer would sell its products to a
distributor or its designated agent (the first invoice), and after that, that particular
distributor or designated agent would not be allowed to on-sell the products to
other distributors or their designated agents but should sell them directly to the
medical institution (the second invoice). The objective of the “Two-Invoice System”
was to reduce the number of layers of distributors between the drug manufacturers

and the medical institutions.

VYR B A R R A RAF

2016 ' ) i



"""" I Bl F F40.5% K 28.8%
BZARFEHENE - 12
RS JIIE= ) & 913
R B B R 5 LA
1 2 5 3% - o5k IR I 5 35
T ERGER . WA LBA
MR-

9 SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
© 0000000000000 0000000000000000000000000

orded a decrease in sales of 40.5%

and 28.8% year-on-year, respectively. Yuanzhijiu continued
to achieve sales growth. Yeduojia, Danshen Chuanxionggqin,
Yimaining and Qu’'Ao recorded slight decrease in sales,
while other non-exclusive products recorded decreases in
sales due to intensified competition and lowered selling

prices.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

FELOSIERE RS - Sales of key CCV products:
7] b
4 WEAH=1HIEAMEA Change in sales
Product Name For the six months ended 30 June year-on-year
—“E A RN
2015 2016
(ANRHTTT) (AR T)
(RMB000) (RMB’000)
SUMRIR, /2 HE A (FG AR BR AL DR A T 56 )
Kelinao/Anjieli (Cinepazide maleate injection) 366,872 218,218 -40.5%
PV §E NG R R W)
Oudimei (Cerebroside-kinin injection) 454,587 323,834 -28.8%
TR 2 (5 T 16 2 1 /K IR 4 5t )
Yuanzhijiu (Troxerutin and
cerebroproptein hydrolysate injection) 218,387 219,965 0.7%
2 4 (07 =4 Ban T
Yeduojia (Compound trivitamin B for injection (II)) 62,150 60,318 -2.9%
FH2 )5 88 (FF 211 25 e B R T 560 )
Danshen Chuanxiongqin (Salviae miltiorrhizae
and ligustrazine hydrochloride injection) 110,299 101,328 -8.1%
it AR (i8] 3 748 i o7 L T S )
Yimaining (Alprostadil lipid emulsion injection) 138,772 130,051 -6.3%
GM1 (BFLIE i 9 170 2 0 o A8 A 0 T R
GM1 (Monosialotetrade osylganglioside
sodium injection) 102,749 79,907 -22.2%
HERYFFEHSYIN 7))
Qu’Ao (Cerebroprotein hydrolysate) 57,950 55,682 -3.9%
I 51 ) SRR 1 25 % )
Chuanqing (Ligustrazine hydrochloride for injection) 44,570 32,077 -28.0%
T (MR i 2 T A )
Qingtong (Edaravone injection) 37,472 25,505 -31.9%

FRALTE S (2 Tl Rl e I A1 7E 4R B 42 7 )
Guhong injection (Compound of
aceglutamide and safflower extract) 72,515 52,761 -27.2%
1 A 3R R TR
Salivae Miltiorrhizae Liguspyragine
Hydrochloride and Glucose Injection 1,727 909 -47.4%
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- E T S O A O 885 Sales of key Non-CCV products:
fid
IF] b 8 5 s Y
B fih 44 BEAA=ZTHIEAWEA Change in sales
Product Name For the six months ended 30 June year-on-year
B S T2
2015
(AR¥TT)
(RMB'000)
BB REF)
Ren’Ao (Oxcarbazepine) 11,081 5.8%
R (B E R R)
Bi’Ao (Ambroxol hydrochloride) 29,372 -17.9%
HR(EREARE)
Zhuo'Ao (Ambroxol hydrochloride) 9,836 -24.6%
MR
Clindamycin 23,108 -61.0%
ROET
Roxatidine 4,189 77.0%
[ i (5 R B~ ot R A i T S5 )
Huineng (Monoammonium Glycyrrhizinate
and Cysteine and Sodium Chloride Injection) 1,036 234.5%
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(i)

Sales and Marketing
In the first half of 2016, faced with steep challenges arising

from control on total expenditure for medical insurance, the
implementation of the “T'wo-Invoice System” and lowering tender
prices, the Group timely adjusted its marketing strategy to focus
on county-level and community-level medical institutions. In
accordance with the national policy orientation of hierarchical
diagnosis and treatment, the Group dedicated its efforts in the
development of more small- and medium-sized hospitals markets
to minimize the impact of tighter control on excessive medical
insurance expenditure in high-end markets. The Group endeavored
to promote its newly launched products during the past two
years by seizing tendering opportunities, entering products into
provincial and municipal drug reimbursement lists and essential
drug lists, and developing the private hospital market. In addition,
the Group actively discussed with distributors ways to minimize

the impact of the “Two-Invoice System”.

To further develop the hospital market, the Group conducted
practical and effective academic promotion activities. The Group
organized frequent hospital-level and small scale departmental
academic activities. The Group conducted targeted clinical research
of its core products in order to enhance physicians’ recognition
of the Group’s products. In the first half of 2016, the Group
organized a total of 3,335 academic promotion activities, including
3,287 hospital-level and departmental academic seminars and 48
provincially/municipally medium scale and nationally large scale

academic symposiums.

At the same time, the Group continued to take advantage of the
professional online platform of Sihuan Pharm Oanline School for
marketing promotions. The Group further optimized and enriched
its online content, launched a new section “Beijing Hospital
Neurology Snapshot” and updated a number of other sections,
containing contents such as clinical consultation and operation
videos, academic activities, and industry updates. During the
Period, there were 6,902 new registered members. As at the end
of June 2016, there were over 52,976 registered physicians as
members and over 10 million visitors. The online platform not
only improved the Group’s professional brand image in neurology,

but also served as a new way for academic promotions.
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(111)

To actively respond to market changes, the Group continued
to strengthen its sales and marketing system by enhancing
the professionalism and sales and marketing capabilities of its
sales staff. In the Period, the Group hired several marketing
management personnel who have extensive experience in multi-
national pharmaceutical companies, and set up the medical affairs
department which is responsible for medical market research and
marketing strategies. The Group introduced SMART (which
means specific, measurable, achievable, realistic and timed) market
data analysis system which uses market data analysis to determine
a product’s market development potential and, in turn, sales and
marketing targets. It facilitates efficient resources allocation and

market development.

New Drug R&D

The Group achieved encouraging progress in new drugs R&D
during the Period. The innovative patented drug Pirotinib (7K
ZRJ2) completed the dose escalating trial of Phase I clinical
trials in the United States and patients demonstrated preliminary
efficacy responses without serious adverse effects. Phase I clinical
trials of Pirotinib in China also progressed smoothly. Imigliptin
Dihydrochloride (B {K4%517T) obtained approval for Phase 11/
III clinical trials from the China Food and Drug Administration
(“CFDA”) on 27 July 2016. Production of samples for its Phase
II clinical trials were completed and Phase II clinical trials will
commence shortly. Anaprazole Sodium (ZARFIPESN) completed
Phase I clinical trials and results are being summarized. Samples
for Phase II/III clinical trial are being prepared for the application
of clinical trial approval. In addition, Category 1.1 innovative
drugs Tylerdipine Hydrochloride (7% 44H1°F) and Benapenem (F
AN completed Phase I clinical trials and results are being
summarised. Phase I clinical trial of Janagliflozin (A& %) is
under preparation. In addition, the novel analgesic exclusive drug
jointly developed with the Japanese company RaQualia Pharma
Inc. is proceeding smoothly, 40 new synthesized compounds
were developed and are under screening, among which monomer

compounds were discovered that have further research value.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(iv)

Good progress was also achieved in generic drugs R&D. The Group
received approvals for clinical trials of 36 products, 27 of which
were Category 3 new drugs. By the end of June 2016, 26 projects
filed application for production approval. They are expected to be

progressively launched to the market within two to three years.

In addition, the Group's generic drugs team started quality consistency
evaluation on five oral formulations (including metformin hydrochloride
tablets (ﬁ@:ﬁ%%ﬂ‘), azithromycin capsules (Bﬂﬁtﬂ?ﬂg%),
oxcarbazepine tablets (@‘Eﬁ‘?‘ﬂ‘), simvastatin (CEfAETT H) and
candesartan cilexetil tablets (X HLVP IS ).

Also, the Group received eight national, provincial and municipal
awards for its new drug R&D, demonstrating recognition of the

Group’s R&D capabilities from government entities at all levels.

Production Quality Control

After production facilities of the Group passed the new Good
Manufacturing Practice (“GMP”) certification, the Group
established a production quality management center to implement
systematic production quality management of the production
facilities. According to the new GMP management standard and
new requirements of CFDA, the Group has established a stricter
internal quality control system and implemented internal quality
audits to promote strict implementation of the system. In the first
half of 2016, the Group’s production quality management center
implemented six quality audits in total at the production facilities,
and required the production facilities to submit rectification plans
on problems and defect items found in the quality audits, which
would be improved and rectified after the plans were approved by
the production quality management center. Under strict systematic
management, the production facilities continued to optimize their
production management and quality control. During the Period,
the Group's internal qualification rate was 100%. No unqualified
samples were found during inspections by external institutions
(local drug testing laboratories, etc.). No quality and safety-related

incidents have occurred.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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The Group’s production costs from the production system were
pressured by continuously rising labor costs and commencement
of amortisation incurred by previous upgrade to meet the GMP
standard. Despite improvement in the yield of finished products
of the Group’s main products attributable to the enhancement of
technological standards and production efficiency, the Group's
amortised cost per production unit has significantly increased as
compared to the same period last year due to lower production

volume of the Group’s main products.

(II) FUTURE PROSPECTS

@)

Industry Outlook

It is expected that the government will maintain tight control over
excessive growth in medical expenditure, which, in turn, will be
causing hospitals to exercise tight control on prescription of drugs
to reduce their drug costs. The lowering of provincial drug tender
prices and implementation of the “Two-Invoice System” will
continue to pressure the pharmaceutical industry. Moreover, the
government’s implementation of higher technical and regulatory

standards is inflicting short-term pressure on the industry.

Fueled by China’s ageing population, rapid urbanization and
universal medical insurance coverage, rigid demand in the
domestic pharmaceutical market will continue to grow. With the
elimination of weaker competitors and mergers and acquisitions
across the industry, pharmaceutical corporations with integrated
operational advantages are expected to gain growth opportunities

and flourish in the long run after the short-term challenges.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

(ii) Operation Strategies Adjustment

In view of changes in the market, the Group will adjust its

strategies in a timely and proactive manner. The Group sees the

challenges as opportunities to improve and advance its internal

management and consolidate its business fundamentals, in order

to maintain operational stability and to pave the way for better

development in the future.

1)

Expanding into low-end medical market to fully realize
market potential of existing products

While consolidating its leadership in first and second-tier
cities, the Group has also been focusing on the development
of low-end markets which cover county-level or small
prefecture-level city hospitals, town hospitals and third-
party end-users. For products well-developed in first and
second-tier cities, the Group will deepen its penetration
by developing their low-end markets; for products in the
development stage, the Group will expand horizontally
into new regions while vertically expanding into low-end
markets. For products newly launched in the past two years,
the Group will seize all tender opportunities to enter new
markets and expand in all levels of markets from provincial
capitals to prefecture- and county-level markets. In
conclusion, the Group is dedicated to deepening its market
penetration and refining management, in order to tap into
the unrealized potential of different markets to maximize

return.
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2)

3)

Extending life span of core products

To increase physicians” understanding and recognition of the
Group's products, the Group conducted research analysis
on its core products in areas including their mechanism,
characteristics and new clinical usage. The Group used the
results and relevant information for marketing promotions
through different kinds of academic exchange and
communication channels, mainly focusing on the education
of front-line medical personnel about the products’ safety
and efficacy. In the first half of 2016, the Group has
commenced several research studies on its core products.
Supported by promising medical analysis results, the Group
is extending its penetration in the hospital market, with an
aim to extend the coverage of its several core products to
8,000 to 10,000 hospitals.

Further enrichment of product resources portfolio

After the launch of Roxatidine, Huineng, Clindamycin
and Metronidzole, the Group has progressively launched
more new products including Nilestriol, Verapamil
Hydrochloride, Nicotinamide and Dopamine Hydrochloride.
The Group will continue to enrich its operational product
portfolio from launching of new products selected from
its product reserve as well as products having received
production approval. Following the all-round tender of each
province, contribution from these products is expected to
grow gradually, which will help alleviate the burden on sales

growth of mature products.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

4)

Adjusting sales and marketing strategies to adapt to
policy and market changes

In order to minimize the impact of the “Two-Invoice
System”, the Group will adjust the sales and marketing
system into a hybrid marketing model. The Group will
continue to engage stronger distributors as independent
third parties to work with its internal marketing team,
while selectively hiring smaller distributors as the Group's
in-house sales staff. The Group will also build direct sales
teams in markets where it has no or little presence. In
the meantime, the Group will extend its distribution and
delivery channels to low-end markets, laying the foundation
for the Group’s development in those markets. These
efforts are to ensure smooth transition of the sales system
to the “Two-Invoice System”, while extending the Group's

intensive market coverage and strengthening its control.

The Group will steer its sales and marketing system to be
more focused on academic promotion, which is different
from the traditionally sales-driven model. Under such
system, a product’s market position is built upon academic
research results and market analysis data. The sales and
marketing system will be managed in a scientific, systematic

and digitized manner.
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(III) OUTLOOK

The industry is set to face a slew of immense challenges in 2016.
Continued control over excessive medical insurance expenditures,
declining tender prices, implementation of the “Two-Invoice System”
and numerous uncertainties to the follow-up policies, putting pressure
on Sihuan Pharmaceutical and other pharmaceutical companies. In the
second half of 2016, the Group will keep on strengthening its internal
management and exercise effective cost control, in order to consolidate its

business foundation and sustain operational stability.

On the back of its leading market position, solid operation foundation,
economies of scale, strong capabilities in R&D and sales and marketing,
the management believes that Sihuan Pharmaceutical can withstand and
will overcome the short-term challenges smoothly in the coming years.
Through continuous adjustment and improvement, the Group will

embrace new opportunities for future prosperity.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Turnover

For the Period, total revenue of the Group decreased by 21.8% or approximately
RMB385.8 million from RMB1,773.5 million for the six months ended 30
June 2015 to RMB1,387.7 million for the Period. The decrease was mainly due
to the fact that the Company reduced its supply price for Kelinao/Anjieli, one
of its core products, in order to compete with its competitors and enhance the
appetite of distributors, and supply price for many other non-exclusive products
were also reduced at varying degrees. Meanwhile, control on medical insurance

expenditure also greatly affected sales of the Group.

For the Period, sales of CCV drugs amounted to approximately RMB1,312.1
million, representing a decrease of approximately RMB363.3 million when
compared with the six months ended 30 June 2015, which accounted for

approximately 94.6% of the Group's total revenue.

Revenue derived from non-CCV drugs decreased by approximately 23.0% from
RMB98.1 million for the six months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB75.6 million
for the Period, accounting for approximately 5.4% of the Group's total revenue.
The decrease was mainly due to a sharp fall in the Group’s sales of anti-infective

drugs caused by a strict limitation on the use of anti-infective drugs in China.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of sales

The Group's cost of sales for the Period amounted to approximately RMB460.3

million, accounting for approximately 33.2% of the total revenue.

Gross profit

Gross profit of RMB927.4 million was recorded for the Period, representing a
decrease of RMB351.5 million when compared with RMB1,278.9 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2015. Overall gross profit margin decreased from
72.1% for the six months ended 30 June 2015 to 66.8% for the Period, which
was mainly due to a decrease in selling price of some products as a result of keen
market competition as well as an increase in amortisation and depreciation after

completions of our new plants under GMP requirements.

Other net gains

Other net gains decreased by RMB465.0 million from RMB615.3 million for
the six months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB150.3 million for the Period. This
was mainly due to the one-off income arising from the disposal of equity interest
in Jilin Sichang Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sichang”) in the same period

last year.

Distribution costs

Distribution costs for the Period decreased by RMB6.1 million to RMB55.9
million over the same period last year due to lower transportation expenses and

marketing expenditure.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenses decreased by 14.4% from RMB253.2 million for the
six months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB216.7 million for the Period as higher
provision of professional expenses and bonus to Directors in the same period of

last year.

Net finance income

Net finance income decreased from RMB71.6 million for the six months ended
30 June 2015 to RMB48.9 million for the Period. The decrease was mainly due

to lower return on our investments under prevailing market conditions.
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Profit before income tax

Based on the above factors, the Group's profit before income tax decreased by
47.1% from RMB1,682.3 million for the six months ended 30 June 2015 to
RMB890.5 million for the Period.

Income tax expenses

As a result of lower operating profit and the effect of time difference on tax from
disposal of Jilin Sichang, the Group's income tax expenses decreased by 28.3%
from RMB240.5 million for the six months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB172.5

million for the Period.

Profit for the Period

Based on the above factors, the Group's net profit decreased by 50.2% from
RMB1,441.7 million for the six months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB718.0

million for the Period.

Profit attributable to owners of the Company

Profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 49.3% from
RMB1,451.6 million for the six months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB736.0
million for the Period. However, after excluding the one-off income of
RMB547.0 million derived from the disposal of Jilin Sichang in 2015, the
profit attributable to owners of the Company decreased by 18.6%.

Profit attributable to non-controlling interests

Losses in non-controlling interests increased from RMB9.8 million for the six
months ended 30 June 2015 to RMB18.0 million for the Period as the losses in

non-wholly owned subsidiaries expanded.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity and financial resources

As at 30 June 2016, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB2,678.3 million (as at 31 December 2015: RMB2,282.4 million) and
available-for-sale financial assets amounted to RMB2,484.1 million (as at 31
December 2015: RMB1,959.3 million).

The Group generally deposits its excess cash in interest-bearing bank accounts
and current accounts. The Group may use extra cash for short-term investments
in order to obtain better returns. Therefore, members of the Group entered
into agreements with certain state-owned banking institutions in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”) and reputable international financial institutions
outside of the PRC to invest extra cash. According to such agreements, during
the Period, the total amount of investment of members of the Group amounted
to RMB2,449.0 million. The investments made by the Group according to
these agreements were categorized as short-term investments, which mainly
consisted of financial planning products purchased from certain state-owned
banks and reputable international financial institutions outside of the PRC.
For the said financial planning products, the issuing banks of such financial
planning products may invest the Group's funds at their discretion into financial
instruments such as treasury bonds, discounted bank acceptances, commercial
acceptance bills and bank deposits. The investment principal of RMB2,449.0
million plus interest of approximately RMB35.1 million in aggregate amounted
to approximately RMB2,484.1 million, which was recognized as available-
for-sale financial assets in the consolidated balance sheet of the Group as at 30
June 2016. As at the date of this Interim Report, total amount of sold/repaid

investment principal amounted to RMB2,111.0 million.

Save as disclosed below, the Group did not have other liabilities and bank loans,
as a result of which, its gearing ratio (net debt to equity attributable to owners
of the Group plus net debt, net debt represented remaining borrowings) is less
than 1%.
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The Group has sufficient cash as at 30 June 2016. The Directors are of the

opinion that the Group does not have any significant capital risk.

Trade and other receivables

The Group's trade receivables consist of credit sales of its products to be paid by
its distributors. Other receivables of the Group consist of prepaid value added
tax, prepayments to suppliers, deposits and other receivables. The Group’s
trade and other receivables were RMB747.0 million as at 30 June 2016,
representing a decrease of RMB225.3 million when compared with trade and
other receivables of RMB972.3 million as at 31 December 2015, mainly due to

a decrease in other receivables and notes receivables for the Period.

Inventory

Inventory as at 30 June 2016 amounted to RMB265.9 million (as at 31
December 2015: RMB233.0 million). Inventory turnover days were 98 days for
the Period (for the six months ended 30 June 2015: 73 days). The Group had no

inventory impairments during the Period.

Property, plant and equipment

The Group's property, plant and equipment consist of buildings, production
and electronic equipment, motor vehicles and construction in progress. As at
30 June 2016, the net book value of property, plant and equipment amounted
to RMB2,062.6 million, representing an increase of RMB11.2 million, or
approximately 0.5%, when compared with the net book value of property, plant
and equipment as at 31 December 2015. The increase was mainly attributable
to the expansion or construction of existing and new production facilities, and

the purchase of equipment.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Intangible assets

The Group’'s intangible assets mainly consist of goodwill, customer
relationships, patents, deferred development costs and product development
in progress. The Group’s goodwill arose from acquisition of the Group's
subsidiaries. The deferred development costs and product development in
progress mainly represented the acquisition of certain pharmaceutical R&D
projects from external research institutions and self-developed R&D projects. As
at 30 June 2016, net intangible assets amounted to RMB2,797.1 million (as at
31 December 2015: RMB2,817.1 million).

Trade and other payables

The Group’s trade and other payables primarily consist of trade payables,
advances from customers, other payables and accrued expenses. As at 30 June
2016, trade and other payables amounted to RMB1,294.7 million, representing
an increase of RMB630.4 million when compared with the trade and other
payables as at 31 December 2015, mainly due to an increase in dividends

payable.

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no material contingent liabilities or

guarantees (31 December 2015: nil).

Off-balance sheet commitments and arrangements

As at 30 June 2016, apart from the contingent liabilities disclosed, the Group
has not entered into any off-balance sheet arrangements or commitments to
provide guarantees for any payment liabilities of any cooperative factories. The
Group did not have any variable interests in any unconsolidated entities that
provide financing or liquidity, create market risk or offer credit support to the
Group or engage in the provision of leasing, hedging or R&D services to the

Group.
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Capital commitment

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had a total capital commitment of RMB242.4
million, mainly set aside to acquire property, plant and equipment and

intangible assets.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk of a counterparty defaulting on its contractual
obligations resulting in a financial loss for us. The Group has no significant
concentrations of credit risk. Credit risk arises mainly from cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial assets.
The carrying amounts of cash equivalents, short-term bank deposits, trade and
other receivables and available-for-sale financial assets represent the Group’s

maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to our financial assets.

With respect to cash and cash equivalents, the Group manages the credit risk of
cash in the PRC by placing it as bank deposits in large state-owned banks in the
PRC without significant credit risks. The Group manages the credit risk of cash
outside of the PRC by placing it as bank deposits in financial institutions that

have high credit quality.

With respect to trade and other receivables, the Group has policies in place to
ensure certain cash advances are paid by customers upon the agreement of the
related sales orders. The Group assesses the credit quality of the counterparties
by taking into account their financial positions, credit histories and other
factors. The Group also undertakes certain monitoring procedures to ensure that
proper follow-up action is taken to recover overdue debts. The Group regularly
performs ageing analysis, assesses credit risks and estimates the recoverability of
groups of trade receivables bearing similar credit risks based on historical data

and cash collection history.

Available-for-sale financial assets are short-term investments placed with state-
owned financial institutions in the PRC and high-quality international financial
institutions outside of the PRC. There was no recent history of default and the
executive directors of the board of the Company are of the opinion that the

credit risk related to the investment is low.

No other financial assets bear a significant exposure to credit risk.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign exchange risk

RMB is the functional currency of the Group. Financial instruments of the
Group are denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group is subject to
currency risk of United States Dollar (“USD”) or Hong Kong Dollar (‘HKD”)
against RMB as the Group has some cash balances denominated in USD or
HKD. In addition, dividend payment of foreign currency converted from RMB
is subject to foreign exchange rules and regulations promulgated by the PRC
government. As at 30 June 2016, the Group had no outstanding borrowings

denominated in a foreign currency.

For the Period, the Group did not purchase any foreign exchange, interest rate

derivative products or relevant hedging tools.

Treasury Policies

The Group finances its ordinary operations with internally generated resources.

Capital expenditure

The Group’s capital expenditure primarily consists of purchase of property,
plant and equipment, prepaid land lease payments and intangible assets. For
the Period, the Group’s capital expenditure amounted to RMB134.4 million,
of which RMB101.7 million was spent on property, plant and equipment.
The expense for purchasing and self-developed intangible assets was RMB32.7

million.
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i B 205 B A Al i R - NHPEA
IV Health & Buromax ¥ A 38.14% ~ 57.06% X
4.80% °
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AR 1349 %t (CF—HENHZTH
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Material acquisition and disposal

On 5 February 2016, Sun Moral International (HK) Limited (“Sun Moral”),
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company agreed with NHPEA IV Health
Holding B.V. (“NHPEA IV Health”) and Euromax Holdings Limited
(“Euromax”) to inject capital into Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. (“Renfang
Medical”). Renfang Medical was then owned as to 23.71% by Euromax,
38.14% by NHPEA IV Health and 38.14% by Sun Moral, respectively. The
total amount of capital injected into Renfang Medical was USD26.6 million
(equivalent to RMB172.4 million) (the “Capital Injection”). The Capital
Injection was contributed by each of the shareholders of Renfang Medical
with respect to their then shareholdings in Renfang Medical proportionally
(i.e. USDG6.3 million (equivalent to RMB40.9 million) by Euromax, USD10.1
million (equivalent to RMB65.6 million) by NHPEA IV Health and USD10.1
million (equivalent to RMB65.6 million) by Sun Moral).

In or around April 2016, Euromax and NHPEA IV Health, inter alia, entered
into a share purchase agreement. Pursuant to the share purchase agreement,
Euromax sold 18.91% equity interest in Renfang Medical to NHPEA IV
Health. As such, as at the date of this Interim Report, Renfang Medical is
owned as to 38.14% by Sun Moral, 57.06% by NHPEA IV Health and 4.80%

by Euromax.

Pledge of assets
As at 30 June 2016, none of the Group's assets were pledged.

Human Resources and Remuneration of Employees

Human resources are indispensable assets to the success of the Group in a
competitive environment. The Group provides competitive remuneration
package to all employees. The Group reviews its own human resources and
remuneration policy regularly, to encourage employees to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the long-term growth of

the Company.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had 2,782 employees. For the Period, total
salaries and related costs of the Group were approximately RMB134.9 million
(for the six months ended 30 June 2015: RMB112.1 million).

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Other Information

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the Directors and chief executive of the Company had the
following interests and short positions in the shares of the Company (“Shares”),
underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or any associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(“SFO”)) as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model
Code”):

(i) Directors’ interests in Shares

JBEHERE X 7 43 LE

Jhe A 488 Approximate

EREA MERTEE By Total Number percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity of Shares Shareholding
HISTHE L ZPE Bt (MRt 1) 5,933,720,706 (4 A7) 57.58% (4 5)
Dr. Che Fengsheng 5,252,042,038 i (4F£T) (FF5E4) 57.58% (L)
Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 1) 5,933,720,706 (L) 0.34% (RE)

5,252,042,038 Shares (L) (Note 4) 0.34% (S)

B ERT A (FEE2)
37,701,668 & (M)

34,601,668 (R
34,601,668 (S)

34,601,668 B (IRA)
Settlor of a trust (Note 2)
37,701,668 Shares (L)
34,601,668 Shares (S)

Tic {6 R 2

800,000 [ (4FA)
Interest of spouse
800,000 Shares (L)

A HERR (B 3E 3)
925,757,000 & (3 4)
Other interest (Note 3)
925,757,000 Shares (L)
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318,386,000 Shares (L)

HABRERS (BH5E5)
5,839,784,706 ) (3 8)
Other interest (Note 5)
5,839,784,706 Shares (L)

¢ e YL MR A (MR 7) 5,933,720,706 (47 8) 57.58% (38
Mr. Meng Xianhui Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 7) (5L 9) 57.58% (L)
113,180,000 & (4F8) 5,933,720,706 (L)
113,180,000 Shares (L) (Note 9)
FHohRE %5 (W5 8)
5,933,720,706 [’ (4 A7)

Other interest (Note 8)
5,933,720,706 Shares (L)

S M A SRR EHER (M3 10) 5,933,720,706 (4 8) 57.58% (3 R)
Dr. Zhang Jionglong Interest in a controlled corporation (Note 10) (KtsE12) 57.58% (L)
198,940,000 i (4F £) 5,933,720,706 (L)
198,940,000 Shares (L) (Note 12)
Fie (4 4
1,321,000 [ (47 8)

Interest of spouse
1,321,000 Shares (L)

HoAb SR (FHRE11)
5,931,899,706 B (4F )
Other interest (Note 11)
5,931,899,706 Shares (L)

Fi et EEE! 2PN 60,0001 %) 0.00% (4 5)
Mr. Zhu Xun 60,000/ 1)

Beneficial owner

60,000 Shares (L) 60,000 (L) 0.00% (L)
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(5)

(6)

()

}zz%ﬂgiﬁyplenty Gold Enterprises
Limited ( [Plenty Gold| ) E#ATAL]
609 A BNetwork Victory Limited 2HFE
BATRA N T A A o FLk - BT
AR F R Plenty Gold iNetwork Victory
Limiced 7} il FEAT B A 714,754,594,038
B %2497 ,448,000 B 73 Fh AT 4 o

E’ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁiﬁ%%(&huan Management
(PTC) Limited ( [SZFEAAF ] ) AHZ
FEAN) MBER T AZ— o BB AR
ZrE NA R FEA 137,701,668 A (4F
) Kit34,601,668M MM (GRA) HiHE
it o

R 8 5 B B 155317 K318k - HE
VST B AL A A B el B A B A - 5
M o R A TR E B R
A7 HE AR BB 2 A HE 4319282,580,000
J& ~ 329,736,000 ~ 113,180,000/ &
200,261,000/ & 1 HHEA HE 47

1#5,933,720,706 M (4F ) > B
T A= 3 48 7 1 1k (R 4 I L At BE 45 A

PR R O 23 282,580,000 I
(FAy) s s -

MR8 5 B B3 317 B3 18tk »
AR A R A B el S TR - 3
HEWR A - A TR R A
A7 R 4 BRI B AT HE5195,290,543,706
i~ 235,800,000/ ~ 113,180,000/ K
200,261,000/ B i HHEA HE 4 o

#£5,933,720,706 B et (BFA) o EB4E
IR R R A5 T A T A R HE 5 1

PR o BB A1 235,800,000 A R
(hF) oA -

8k T By Smart Top Overseas Limited
ZMEETRANEEEA A > SR
F A Smarc Top Overseas Limited 547 1)
113,180,000 B f vh A HE 4 o

Notes:

(1

()}

3)

)

®)

6

7

At BB

Other Information

Dr. Che Fengsheng is the beneficial owner of approximately 60% of the issued share
capital of Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”) as well as the entire
issued share capital of Network Victory Limited. As such, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the 4,754,594,038 Shares and 497,448,000 Shares held
by Plenty Gold and Network Victory Limited in the Company, respectively.

Since Dr. Che Fengsheng is one of the settlors of the trust for which Sihuan
Management (PTC) Limited (“Trustee Co.”) is a trustee, Dr. Che Fengsheng is
deemed to be interested in the long position in 37,701,668 Shares and the short
position in 34,601,668 Shares held by Trustee Co.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Che Fengsheng is deemed to be
interested in the 282,580,000 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares
and 200,261,000 Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,933,720,706 Shares, Dr. Che Fengsheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 282,580,000 Shares through

both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Guo Weicheng is deemed to be
interested in the 5,290,543,706 Shares, 235,800,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares
and 200,261,000 Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested

in, respectively.

Among the long position in 5,933,720,706 Shares, Dr. Guo Weicheng is interested
in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 235,800,000 Shares through

both the nature of settlor of the trust and other interest.

Mr. Meng Xianhui is the beneficial owner of the entire issued share capital of Smart
Top Overseas Limited and is deemed to be interested in the 113,180,000 Shares
held by Smart Top Overseas Limited.

DY R R A AR AW
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ha apita of
erested in the 198,940,000 Shares held

by Keen Mate Limited.

a1 RS S RH B RGISE317 K318l o R (11)  Under sections 317 and 318 of the SFO, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is deemed to be
A HE A A 2 1 2 B o U R A 3 interested in the 5,290,543,706 Shares, 329,736,000 Shares, 113,180,000 Shares
MEWUR A o R TR AN HE R A and 198,440,000 Shares which Dr. Che Fengsheng, Dr. Guo Weicheng, Mr. Meng
A M S 2 B HE AR £995,290,543,706 Xianhui and Dr. Zhang Jionglong are interested in or are deemed to be interested
M~ 329,736,000 ~ 113,180,000/ K in, respectively.
198,440,000/ e 73 i A7 HE 4 -

(12)  7%5,933,720,706 el (FA) o o s (12)  Among the long position in 5,933,720,706 Shares, Dr. Zhang Jionglong is
TR BRI S IR interested in or deemed to be interested in the long position in 198,440,000 Shares
PR R SO 2371 198,440,000 I through both the nature of interest in a controlled corporation and other interest.

(HFR) oA s -

(13)  F (L) REFEFRZSRBNTE (13)  The letter “L” denotes the Director’s long position in such Shares and the lecter “S”
MRk TS H A 0 % 55 IO IR denotes the Director’s short position in such Shares.
g °
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(1) 2 R I 3 T8 P A v e 25 (i) Directors’ interest in the shares of associated corporations

JRERERER T 2 b

R W 2 L 44 7 WA HEE B e by 5 H Approximate

Name of HHIEH Nature of Number of percentage of

Associated Corporation Name of Director Interest/Capacity Shares Shareholding

Plenty Gold HIET B HiELS 4,511,813 60.16%
Dr. Che Fengsheng Beneficial interest

Plenty Gold AR A B i B 1,989,915 26.53%
Dr. Guo Weicheng Beneficial interest

Plenty Gold % Yt gt 0 595,110 7.93%
Mzr. Meng Xianhui Beneficial interest

Plenty Gold TRIMBE R B i HE A 403,162 5.38%

Dr. Zhang Jionglong

Br bR AN > R F— NN H
=+H KEFE FEFHAARHES
B N 7 A ) A ] A B
M (7 28 R I SO B 56 X v ) 2 i
3~ AR PR B R 5 v A AR 58 0 I
B A6 81 5 XV R ER 7 I 8 4y BN & AR
N ) BB AE BT 2 M i BOR A (R AR R T
Jr B 0 B W9 2 A7 B M ST
A 2 M SOk A) > SRUE B TER
B BB RIS 352 R/EAE B 2 % it
ZHER R > SR PR Y S R
AN T BB 2 ki SR A o

T EUB By o 0 05 Z B

R > AN T AR T EE - ERATHA
B U AR B 2 B SR BUE AT (2 8 i
BN R e S T IO 4R 2 RER  DLE
AL A TR AT G BT R o AN R ~ AR
B2 ) SSCHCAT foT Y 2 ) O 20 22 BRLAE o 42 B
B 25 2 R M A A P UL S A
A o

Beneficial interest

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors,
chief executive and their associates had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations, within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO, which were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which he/she/it was deemed or taken to have
under such provisions of the SFO) or which were recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO, or
as otherwise which were required to be notified to the Company and the

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

During the Period, the Company did not grant any rights to any Directors, chief
executive or their respective spouse or children under the age of 18 to acquire
beneficial interests by means of the acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company, and none of the above persons have exercised the said rights during
the Period. The Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries were
not a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in

any other body corporate.
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TR OB B A ~ B B A B
# P2 Bk

REF—AREAA=ZTH > FAFRRBESK
MBI 336 AR B2 ERMicsk > T
BR (REFARFZ EHHERTHAR) R
AN B EITIBA - MIBA B sAE 57 A 5%
WA R (RLAERA)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2016, the following shareholders, other than the Directors or
chief executive of the Company, which were recorded in the register required to
be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO, had interests of 5% or
more (including short positions) in the issued share capital, underlying Shares or

debentures of the Company:

JRERERER Fi 2 b
JBe A3 48 Approximate
JBe 3 44 WERR I Sy Total Number percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest/Capacity of Shares Shareholding
Plenty Gold (fff#E1) BaREa A 4,792,295,706 (4F5) 46.50%
Plenty Gold (Note 1) 4,754,594,038 [k (4F ) 4,792,295,706 (L)
Beneficial owner
4,754,594,038 Shares (L)
fRAtMER T A
37,701,668 i (4F ) 34,601,668 (WA 0.34%

34,601,668 I (IR A)

34,601,668 (S)

Settlor of a trust
37,701,668 Shares (L)
34,601,668 Shares (S)

fif 3T -

(1) Plenty Gold B #EHFFA AN F4,754,594,038 %[
o KRB A ARANT37,701,668 B (4F
) K34,601,668M M GRAE) HEHMZIEA
AN FERIME— SR o B > Plency Gold B4 24 1
ZRE NAFIREE 37,701,668 A (HF58) K
34,601,668/ MMy (RE) A HER o

@  FE L] REBRARZEROOEE > W
[s) RGBT 32 5 B IR A o

bR ECRT IR 4L - R F—NERNA=T
Foo A2 R IR o5 ) B e 56 336 R AF
BT E > B LR AL
B SSOA B A £ £ 5 o A AR B S R AR
1% 336 WAt bk 2 HEAR BIR AT -

Notes:

(1) Plenty Gold directly holds 4,754,594,038 Shares in the Company. It is also the sole
shareholder of Trustee Co. which is interested in long position in 37,701,668 Shares and
short position in 34,601,668 Shares in the Company. Accordingly, Plenty Gold is deemed
to be interested in long position in 37,701,668 Shares and short position in 34,601,668
Shares held by Trustee Co.

) The letter “L” denotes the shareholder’s long position in such Shares and the letter “S”

denotes the shareholder’s short position in such Shares.

Save as disclosed above, according to the records in the register required to be
kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO, no other parties had an
interest or a short position in the Shares or underlying Shares or debentures of
the Company recorded under section 336 of the SFO as at 30 June 2016.
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Other Information

EMPLOYEES SHARE AWARD SCHEME

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivizing the management of the
Group (the “Employees Share Award Scheme”) has been adopted by certain
shareholders of the Company (namely, Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr.
Guo Weicheng) on 25 October 2010. On 25 January 2013, another shareholder
of the Company (namely, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.) also participated
in the Employees Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co. (a private trust company
established in the British Virgin Islands and wholly owned by Plenty Gold) has
been appointed as the trustee to hold the reserved Shares under the Employees
Share Award Scheme. Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng,
as settlors of a trust, have reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000 Shares;
and MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. has reserved and set aside an additional
3,750,000 Shares, all of which are being held by the Trustee Co. as trustee for
the Employees Share Award Scheme.

On 28 June 2016, 234 employees of the Group (the “Selected Participants”)
were granted an Employees Share Award Scheme to acquire an aggregate of
31,448,172 Shares of par value HK$0.01 each (“Option Share”) from the
trustee at an exercise price of HK$1.57 per Option Share (the “New Awards”)
on the condition that the Selected Participants will surrender the existing award
(or the remaining balance of such award if a portion of it had been vested and
exercised) granted to the Selected Participants previously on 20 March 2012 and
27 September 2013 by the Company. Subject to certain vesting conditions and
the satisfaction of certain performance targets (if any), the New Awards shall be
exercisable over a period of five years commencing from the date on which the

New Awards are granted.

The Employees Share Award Scheme involves granting of awards over the
existing Shares held by the Trustee Co. as trustee on trust for the benefit of
the employees of the Group and no new Shares will be issued pursuant to the
Employees Share Award Scheme. The granting of the New Awards will not have

any material financial impact on the Company.

As of 30 June 2016, a total of 6 employees have exercised their share awards
involving 2,333,000 Shares.
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CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to Rule 13.51B(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”), changes in information of Directors
during the Period and up to the date of this Interim Report are set out below:

Director Changes

M. Tsang Wah  Ceased to be an independent non-executive director of PanAsialum

Kwong Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 2078)

Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Ping An

Securities Group (Holdings) Limited (stock code: 231)

M. Patrick Sun  Appointed as an independent non-executive director of Kunlun

Energy Company Limited (stock code: 135)

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Period, the Company repurchased 58,633,000 Shares through the
Stock Exchange at a total consideration, before expenses, of approximately
HK$96.5 million. Such Shares have been cancelled as at the date of this Interim

Report. Details of repurchase are as follows:

M JB A7 [ A

Repurchasing price for each Share

Ji ] I A

Date of repurchase

“E-ANEAAZTEH

[BAEE A ]
Aggregate consideration paid
L [l
idig g5 HE R
Number of ARWHET
Shares BT B AR # T H#WIC  Equivalent to

repurchased Highest HK$  Lowest HK$

HKS$ million RMB million

23 June 2016 13,699,000 $1.64 $1.59 223 18.9
“E-ANEAA A

24 June 2016 44,934,000 $1.66 $1.60 74.2 62.9
L

Total: 58,633,000 96.5 81.8
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Other Information

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
six months ended 30 June 2016.

DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of RMB1.4 cents per Share (equivalent to HK1.6 cents per
Share) (for the six months ended 30 June 2015: RMB1.4 cents per Share) was
declared by the Board on 23 August 2016. It is payable on or around Thursday,
15 September 2016 to shareholders of the Company whose names appear on
the register of members of the Company at the close of business on Friday, 9
September 2016.

CLOSURE OF THE REGISTER OF MEMBERS FOR THE
ENTITLEMENT OF INTERIM DIVIDEND

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Wednesday, 7
September 2016 to Friday, 9 September 2016, both days inclusive, for the
purpose of determining shareholders” entitlements to the interim dividend. In
order to qualify for the interim dividend, all properly completed transfer forms
accompanied by the relevant share certificates must be lodged for registration
with the Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, Tricor Investor Services
Limited at Level 22, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no
later than 4:30 p.m. on Tuesday, 6 September 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE
The Company has complied with all the applicable code provisions of the

Corporate Governance Code, as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules

throughout the Period.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS OF LISTED ISSUERS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiries by the
Company, that they have complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code throughout the Period.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM THE GLOBAL OFFERING

In October 2010, the Company allotted 1,437,500,000 ordinary shares at a price
of HK$4.60 through international placing and public offer. Save as disclosed
below, the net proceeds raised from such international placing and public
offer, being approximately HK$6,365.7 million (equivalent to approximately
RMBS5,407.6 million), are used in accordance with the purpose disclosed in the
prospectus of the Company dated 15 October 2010.

During the Period, approximately RMB5,323.2 million raised from the global
offering of the Company was used for the purposes and approximately in the

amounts set out below:

. Approximately RMB540.8 million was used for our product development

and research;

J Approximately RMB456.3 million was used for the development of our

existing products;
° Approximately RMB74.5 million was used for acquisition of products;

U Approximately RMB551.1 million was used for funding the construction

of our two new production facilities located in Beijing and Langfang;

. Approximately RMB300.3 million was used for funding the construction

of production facilities in Jilin province and Liaoning province;

U Approximately RMB3,351.8 million was used for mergers and

acquisitions; and

U Approximately RMB48.4 million was used for enhancement of our sales

and distribution efforts.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Interim Report 2016



REF=RERAAZTH > AAFBBERE K
NABEEEEEH AR 44T ETH R
B ARSHECHEARLFRRBRITF O o

BULHE

FHZBGOERALF RN R &
L REE —F—ARERAZTHIEAEA
AEBARBELLGSEE - RATHHEH
> EREAGUE A FNTES CRNER
B)R=ABLERTER (FERERA - B
oSt BRARRIEA) o M th 7 B st E X E R
FEEREREER - FHRZEGEREAM
FEFA B B SE B A L AE B o

RIS
HFELIE
BT A

TR -ANENA T =H

At BB

Other Information

Approximately RMB84.4 million raised from the international placing and
public offer of the Company remained unused as at 30 June 2016, which is

deposited in the special bank account of the Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Company and the unaudited consolidated results for the six
months ended 30 June 2016 of the Group. As at the date of this interim
report, the Audit Committee consists of one non-executive Director (Dr. Zhang
Jionglong) and three independent non-executive Directors (Mr. Patrick Sun,
Mr. Tsang Wah Kwong and Mr. Zhu Xun), and is chaired by Mr. Patrick Sun
who has a professional qualification in accountancy. The chairman of the Audit
Committee has the appropriate professional qualification and experience in

financial matters.

By Order of the Board
Dr. Che Fengsheng
Chairman of the Board

23 August 2016
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

INTRODUCTION

We have reviewed the interim condensed consolidated financial information
set out on pages 38 to 76, which comprises the interim condensed consolidated
statement of financial position of Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group
Led. (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries as at 30 June 2016, and the related
interim condensed consolidated statement of profit or loss, the interim
condensed consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the interim
condensed consolidated statement of changes in equity and the interim
condensed consolidated statement of cash flows for the six-month period then
ended, and explanatory notes. The Main Board Listing Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited require the
preparation of a report on interim condensed consolidated financial information
to be in compliance with the relevant provisions thereof and International
Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting (IAS 34) issued by the

International Accounting Standards Board.

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
presentation of this interim condensed consolidated financial information in
accordance with IAS 34. Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on this
interim condensed consolidated financial information based on our review. Our
report is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of
engagement and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards

or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Interim Report 2016
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Independent Review Report

SCOPE OF REVIEW

We conducted our review in accordance with International Standard on Review
Engagements 2410 Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the
Independent Auditor of the Entity issued by the International Auditing and
Assurance Standards Board. A review of interim condensed consolidated financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for
financial and accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review
procedures. A review is substantially less in scope than an audit conducted in
accordance with International Standards on Auditing and consequently does
not enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an

audit opinion.

CONCLUSION

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention that causes us to believe
that the interim condensed consolidated financial information is not prepared,

in all material respects, in accordance with IAS 34.

OTHER MATTER

Without qualifying our review conclusion, we draw attention to the fact that
the interim condensed consolidated financial information includes comparative
information as required by IAS 34. The interim condensed consolidated
statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash
flows, and related explanatory notes for the period ended 30 June 2015 has not

been audited or reviewed.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

23 August 2016
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As at
ZRNE SRR
Fif 3T AAZ+H +ZHA=+—H
Notes 30 June 31 December
2016 2015
AR T ANR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REE Y REF
Unaudited Audited
B Assets
B & 2 Non-current assets
W2 - BB R Property, plant and equipment 6 2,062,618 2,051,370
BREWE Investment properties 6 29,992 30,881
ITE B Intangible assets 6 2,797,141 2,817,065
AT - AR 5 3R Prepaid land lease payments 6 587,211 596,407
f AR ST I AR Investments accounted for using
the equity method 11 1,203,910 1,189,118
TEAE P AR G Deferred income tax assets 7 21,974 18,146
oAb Wi E Other receivables 8 4,000 —
HoAhIE i) Other non-current assets 167,753 171,075
6,874,599 6,874,062
T Current assets
& Inventories 265,892 233,028
B 5 B HoAth PSR 3 Trade and other receivables 9 746,989 972,267
Ak 5 Rl Available-for-sale financial assets 10 2,484,111 1,959,280
Ble KB E&%EY Cash and cash equivalents 2,678,311 2,282,370
6,175,303 5,446,945
g R Total assets 13,049,902 12,321,007
e B R Equity and liabilities
A A A A AL E 25 Equity attributable to owners of the Company
JeA Share capital 12 85,126 85,610
& i 1 Share premium 12 5,493,576 5,574,848
HoA s Other reserves 184,689 172,541
TRE3 B A Retained earnings 5,534,858 5,262,640
11,298,249 11,095,639
Tt B 4 Non-controlling interests 81,928 96,093
HRERS Total equity 11,380,177 11,191,732

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Interim Report 2016



0 B A B IR 00 A%

Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

S
As at
ZEN —E—HAE
{13 KM= TH TE A
Notes 30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ANR¥F ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB000
RBEY RE
Unaudited Audited
=Lt Liabilities
FE B £ Non-current liabilities
A T A5 B B A Deferred income tax liabilities 7 86,285 125,876
HoAh IR E) & E Other non-current liabilities 15 60,541 61,220
{458 Borrowings 8,280 8,280
155,106 195,376
S IN=E Current liabilities
Z Ty B H A e A AR K Trade and other payables 14 1,294,706 664,308
B3R Bir 1555 & 18 Current income tax liabilities 181,077 217,696
HoAt i By £ 5 Other current liabilities 15 38,836 51,895
1,514,619 933,899
BWAMS Total liabilities 1,669,725 1,129,275
R I B AR Total equity and liabilities 13,049,902 12,321,007

545 76 H MM RE 2 b I W £ 5 BB R
LR A

The notes on pages 45 to 76 are an integral part of the interim condensed

consolidated financial statements.

T FRAES
Che Fengsheng Guo Weicheng
EH £
Director Director
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

BEAA=ZFHIEAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

TR A e S i
2016 2015
Wifsd AR#F ANRHT T
Notes RMB’000 RMB 000
AR R
Unaudited Unaudited
g Revenue 16 1,387,672 1,773,521
88 LA Cost of sales (460,251) (494,671)
EF Gross profit 927,421 1,278,850
HAthe A Other income 16 23,733 19,821
HAhl 45 — Other gains — net 16 150,311 615,256
vixclii Distribution expenses (55,862) (61,929)
FTHB 52 Administrative expenses (216,662) (253,215)
R A Operating profit 16 828,941 1,598,783
BB A Finance income 49,763 71,920
WS B S Finance expenses (900) (292)
MBI — 548 Finance income — net 48,863 71,628
T A IR AR EE R Y Share of profit and loss of investments
BE RS accounted for using the equity method 11 12,664 11,871
B BT 25 Ao i ¥z Profit before income tax 890,468 1,682,282
P15 ABe 2 Income tax expense 17 (172,516) (240,534)
1A 5 Profit for the period 717,952 1,441,748
VAT REAY Attributable to:
E/NEIE X DN Owners of the Company 735,968 1,451,550
FEE IR 45 Non-controlling interests (18,016) (9,802)
717,952 1,441,748
1 Py AR 28 ) R 2 4 Earnings per share attributable to ordinary
A NG BB 2 A equity holders of the Company during
the period
— B RIEA T i R — Basic and diluted earnings per share
(LA I N R 7351078 ) (expressed in RMB cents per share) 18 7.10 14.01

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
Interim Report 2016
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

BEAA=ZFHIEAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

ZERNE e S i
2016 2015
ABRH T AR T T
RMB000 RMB 000
AT R
Unaudited Unaudited
WA Profit for the period 717,952 1,441,748
oAb 2R Other comprehensive income:
A A S T e 0 A % Other comprehensive income to be reclassified
fH i 1Y H A T - to profit or loss in subsequent periods:
Ak B Available-for-sale investments:
ATEEE) Changes in fair value 35,111 24,475
et A SR AR A R A A Reclassification adjustments for gains
P AR th 2 R included in the consolidated statement
— B B A of profit or loss — gain on disposal (25,280) (13,031)
B Al 2O > BRI Other comprehensive income for
the period, net of tax 9,831 11,444
19 2 A B Total comprehensive income for the period 727,783 1,453,192
DA REAY Attributable to:
E/NGIE 2N Owners of the Company 745,799 1,462,994
T FE IR 2 Non-controlling interests (18,016) (9,802)
727,783 1,453,192

VOB A AR A RA A
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

AR MR
Attributable to owners of the Company
oA BeminfE ARG R E AR MEt REkEG AR
Non-
Shate Share Other Retained controlling Total
capital premium feserves earnings Total interests equity
ARBFL  ARBTT  ABKTrT ARKTT ARKTT ARKTT  ARKTFT
RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000 RMB 000
RZZ—T%—~H—H  Balance as at 1 January 2015
Atk 85,610 5,574,848 151,897 3479322 9291671 114336 9,406,013
MR Profit for the period = = — IS0 1451550 9.802) 1,441,748
Hi 2 MBRBIE Other comprehensive income,
net of tax - - 11444 — 11,444 — 11,444
2RSS Total comprehensive income — — 11444 1451550 1,462,994 9,802) 1,493,192
{E Bt 4 st 1 Employees share award scheme — — 6,805 - 6,809 - 6,805
WA B A Acquisition of a subsidiary — — — = = 30,338 30,338
FHOLHE AR ESR  Non-controlling interests arising on
E el o a newly established subsidiary - - - - - 8,027 8,027
HE—RHE AT Disposal of a subsidiary = = (11,350) 11,350 = (72,326) (72,326)
e E2egi on Acquisition of non-controlling interests — — (890) — (890) (3,517) (4,407)
RZZ=HEAAZTH Balance as at 30 June 2015
SR (REEY) (Unaudited) 85,610 5,574,848 157,906 4942222 10,760,586 67,056 10,827,642

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

255

RATHA NS
Attributable to owners of the Company
Bk BfEE bR REER AR Jed e S
Non-
Share Share Other Retained controlling
capital premium reserves earnings Total interests  Total equity
ANRBTFL  ARETE  AREFZ  ARETLE  AREFLZ  ARETE  ARETZ
RMBO0O ~ RMBUO0  RMBOOO  RMBUO0  RMBUOO  RMBUOOO  RMBUOO
RZZ—A%E—H—H  Balance as at 1 January 2016
it 85,610 5,574,848 172,541 5,262,640 11,095,639 96,093 11,191,732
Mg Fl Profit for the period — — — 735,968 735,968 (18,016) 717,952
HAAR LA » 1B Other comprehensive income,
net of tax — — 9,831 — 9,831 - 9,831
LN Total comprehensive income — — 9,831 735,968 745,799 (18,016) 727,783
[ B e 4 v Employees share award scheme
(3 13) (Notel3) — — 2,097 = 2,097 — 2,207
i T Repurchase and cancellation of shares (484) (81,272) — — (81,756) — (81,756)
RS (HE9) Dividend (Notel9) — — —  (@de3750)  (463,750) —  (463,750)
B Changes in ownership incerests in
WA subsidiaries without change
MAEEGE T of control = = 20 — 20 3,851 3871
RZZB=AEAAZTH Balance as at 30 June
B (R EEY) 2016 (unaudited) 85,126 5,493,576 184,689 5,534,858 11,208,249 81,928 11,380,177

VOB A AR A RA A
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

BEAA=THIEAMA
Six months ended 30 June
ZEAE ZR—HAE
2016 2015
NS ANRHT 7T
RMB000 RMB 000
RBEY: RREY
Unaudited Unaudited
REmEHBaRE Cash flows from operating activities
BEEENIE Cash generated from operations 1,305,520 688,312
RENPIRES) Income tax paid (247,157) (114,990)
R ) A Y Net cash flows generated from
Blem A operating activities 1,058,363 573,322
BEFRH B SR E Cash flows from investing activities
HEE AR HE Capital contribution to associates (3,050) (15,000)
A — KM A R Disposal of a subsidiary — 730,086
& —ZWE A Disposal of an associate 30,336 —
i — KB A WS AT B Tax paid on disposal of a subsidiary — —
W i g 2 Acquisition of subsidiaries = (91,188)
IR Y, - s Kok Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment (101,714) (195,962)
i AT Purchase of intangible assets (32,679) (55,878)
3 {5 P RE LA K0 Prepayment for land use rights — (20,423)
i A o e Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets (4,529,000) —
v R g < Disposal of available-for-sale financial assets 4,014,000 —
B A Interest received 41,546 —
BREEH(TA) Bk Net cash flows (used in)/generated
B from investing activities (580,561) 351,635
b B B R Cash flows from financing activities
G ) R A 17 Repurchase and cancellation of shares (81,756) -
WAL B P B A Acquisition of non-controlling interests — —
I 2 R HE i 36487 AL Capital contribution by non-controlling
Bt & 2wl i interests to a newly established subsidiary — 7,930
EATFLE Interest paid (105) =
mEEE (TH) e & Net cash flows (used in)/generated
Blem A from financing activities (81,861) 7,930
Ble RBLE%EWEMFEH  Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 395,941 932,887
BB B B B Cash and cash equivalents at
beginning of the period 2,282,370 1,359,094
HIRB & KB &% EY Cash and cash equivalents at end of
the period 2,678,311 2,291,981

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sihuan Pharmaceutical Holdings Group Ltd. (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Bermuda under the Bermuda Companies Act as an

exempted company.

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are

manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in Mainland China.

The holding company and the ultimate holding company of the Company
is Plenty Gold Enterprises Limited (“Plenty Gold”), a limited liability

company incorporated under the laws of the British Virgin Islands.

The address of the Company’s registered office is Clarendon House, 2
Church Street, P.O. Box HM 1022, Hamilton HM DX, Bermuda. The
main operation address is 21st Floor, Building 2, Zhubang 2000 Business
Centre, West Balizhuang, Chaoyang District, Beijing, 100025, the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

The Company had its primary listing on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited on 28 October 2010.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information is presented in
Renminbi (‘RMB”) thousand yuan, unless otherwise stated. The interim
condensed consolidated financial information was approved for issue on
23 August 2016.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ A

FEAAZTHIEAMEA

For the six months ended 30 June 2016

2. AR B A 4 it BOR
S W)

2.1

2.2

2.3

R AL
AR T A T B AL

BEEHK  ARFANTEHE
(TRfTES A > AEHRTR

A TE R B IR R ARAE 38 -
I A MB SR R R R
i SO IR I AR

A R
BWEF—AEAAZHIEAM
8 e 9 B 2 T AR
B I B 56 34 9T o S0 5
VR o PO A S
542 B )
BB ) R %
Bt =t FRAE R AR R
Btk —Dr B -

AT ORI i

i B A A P A B B A A T R
RITRANN G BOREA LM EE
SE—REFCA=Z R HIEEE
) 4F B A SRR T — B0 IR
4 R R 4 1 B8 6 A A L
7 ] A0 2B S8 B T B A R T B
BB A MR R AL o BRAN % HET
T SSAETT 180 % B i o M 1 A
BREE _F—AEANA=THIE
7N A B oA 4 5 A v 0 PR 5 B
BR a st BOR I B E K% -

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND CHANGES TO THE
GROUP’S ACCOUNTING POLICIES

2.1

2.2

2.3

Going-concern basis

The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requirements
through its operating activities. The board of executive directors of
the Company (“Executive Directors”) considers that the Group
has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the
foreseeable future. The Group therefore adopts the going concern
basis in preparing the interim condensed consolidated financial

information.

Basis of preparation

The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the
six months ended 30 June 2016 has been prepared in accordance
with International Accounting Standard 34, ‘Interim Financial
Reporting’. The interim condensed consolidated financial
information should be read in conjunction with the annual
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, which
have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”).

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements
are consistent with those as set out in the Group’s annual financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2015, except for
the adoption of new and revised IFRSs issued by International
Accounting Standards Board which have become effective in
this Period. The adoption of those new and revised IFRSs has
no material impact on the accounting policies in the Group's
unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2016.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

féit

i 0 B A B R A LA
fF R~ st AR A BRI - A
OREEe 2 S-Eidiw Al Filie v
BB A BB STH B A o HRR
KR AT REA RIR 25 flwt o

i BRSSO T 5 R EORLINE
L 7 JRE PR A S 1 1Y & ST OB R v
H RSB o RS S Y T AR IR
HEE—F—HETF A =+—HILE
JEE TR 4 2 A5 0L B B AR D

S o 4 L

41 WAEEEBRH R
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BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

ESTIMATES

The preparation of interim condensed consolidated financial information
requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities, income and expense. Actual results may differ from

these estimates.

In preparing these interim condensed consolidated financial information,
management made significant judgments in applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The key sources of estimation of uncertainty were the
same as those that applied to the annual financial information for the year
ended 31 December 2015.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

4.1 Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, fair value interest rate risk,
cash flow interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity

risk.

The interim condensed consolidated financial information does not
include all financial risk management information and disclosures
required in the annual financial statements, and should be read in
conjunction with the Group’s annual financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

There have been no changes in the risk management department or

in any risk management policies since the year end.

4.2 Liquidity risk
During the period, there were no material changes in the

contractual undiscounted cash outflows for financial liabilities.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—% AN = 1 B LA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

4.

$oA 7 B 4 B (A7) 4 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
4.3 APEMF 4.3 Fair value estimation
R A TE WA E i i A The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried
SMIE & > T AREE R % at fair value as at 30 June 2016 by level of the inputs to valuation
— NN H = B A TR R techniques used to measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised
SRV H - HE2ET98% T 0t into three levels within a fair value hierarchy as follows:
T 43 J 0 A Y (EL R A% A 7Y = 1 g
&
o MR EE A EINE ®  Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active
BTG I R SR T E markets for identical assets or liabilities
o 5 T — ] ek R A o Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
%N EE 2 S 8 =K input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
110 5 A T8 A i A 2 S0 4 directly or indirectly observable
Hedi
o B AWBENEAT ®  Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level
EFHRN S B E KRR input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
A A2 B A T unobservable
TR AEEZAFHEFERNE The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that
ENRAERE - are measured at fair value.
M
Level 2
i3
As at
e SaVAY: S “E—RA
AHZ+H +-A=1+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ANRWFIT NEB¥T
RMB000 RMB 000
RBEY: REY
Unaudited Audited
TR e A Available-for-sale financial assets 2,484,111 1,959,280

RBEF—-AFEAA=FHIEAN
A - A ET EA AT -

There were no changes in valuation techniques during the six
months ended 30 June 2016.
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Sy B R
BRI R E BT -
U1 T 9 0 R AP
i R R -

AT FREE A A B AR —
HH P o BIAE P BUORFEOT R - Rk R
HEEN  BE_FT-ANEANA=ZTH
WA A > BT 8RB 2 i > I
53 84 7 1) 4 1 A 4 i 2R 109 BUDA b
ks (BE - F—HEAA=THIER
A : %) -

AREBMPWMAEEEREFEF U LAEHE
909% Lh L 19 I it Bl 1 7 4 o A o B K o

BE_Z—ANEANAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The chief operating decision-maker has been identified as the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors review the Group's internal reporting

in order to assess performance and allocate resources.

The Executive Directors consider the Group as one business segment
from the product perspective, which is the research and development,
manufacturing and sale of pharmaceutical products in Mainland
China. During the six months ended 30 June 2016, all sales were from
distributors and none of the distributors contributed 10% or more of the

Group's revenue (During the six months ended 30 June 2015: None).

All of the Group’s operations and customers, and more than 90% of the

Group’s non-current assets are located in Mainland China.

VYR B 4 R AR A R A F
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BEZZ—ANEAH=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

6. W3-~ WLt - HEY o

* 0 IR E KA L
Bk

BREZZ-AEAN Six months ended 30 June 2016

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
AND PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS

S & it TR

WG Rk h% B %E % THE K
Property, Other Prepaid
plantand  Investment intangible land lease
equipment properties assets Goodwill payments

AR ARWTFZ  AREFZ  ARKTE  ARETZ
RMBO00  RMBU09  RMBUOO  RMBUOO  RMBUOOO

=+HikAEA
RZF—~$—H—H  Opening amount

e p as at | January 2016 2,051,370 30,881 569,337 2,247,728 596,407
nE Additions 91,573 — 44,068 — —
fikes Disposals 2 - - - _
18 R Depreciation and amortisation (80,323) (889) (54,766) — (9,196)
WIER S Impairment charge — - (9,226) - -
RZZB=AEAAZTH  Closing amount as at

WIARH (REHEH) 30 June 2016 (unaudited) 2,062,618 29992 549,413 2,247,728 587,211
BEZZ-HEAN Six months ended 30 June 2015

ZHHIEANEA
RZB—H%F—~F—H  Opening amount

e as at | January 2015 1,704,128 32,659 588,775 2,226,936 362,364
e Additions 142,291 = 31,621 = 20,423
ke S 4 Acquisition of subsidiary 121,989 — 8,050 20,792 =
SRS A TR B EEE Transfer out for an

investment in an associate (11,481) — — - (3,565)

1 R Depreciation and amortization (61,470) (889) (53,609) — (4,952)
REZZ=TEAAZTH  Closing amount as at

MMREH(REER) 30 June 2015 (unaudited) 1,895,457 31,770 574,837 2,247,728 374,270

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

Interim Report 2016



L R D Ak B A A

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

W3k~ Bz K - Y
* o BYEE KA L
BKIE (4

7 AR L 5 L A o K
T fi P

MoE—ANENAZTH - AEE MR
B A5 0 i i (A A\ R %5820,701,000 7G
(ZZF—HF: AR #645,552,00070 )
11 2 4 B4 5 1 BT A R (1 J2 P A e
1) o BRTENFE £ A R 401,822,000 76
(ZF—H4  AR# 419,426,000 70) 1)
TR AT - 3t L 5 AR I 3 e RE R o
RNFEHRL - AEE IR
B 2 B A HE R e ol A Sl e
FERR ] HAS € 5 A SR B Y T A
FEAT AT E R ARG 2 o

JEAL i #5

BE-Z-ANEAA=ZTHILAMAE
JEFRA LA E XA REE T CR%
— BB TR RE I TR F BR ARG B

1) BEFAHE E

BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT,
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
AND PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS (Continued)

The land use rights represent land use rights in Mainland China with a

lease period of 50 years.

As at 30 June 2016, the ownership certificates of buildings (“Building
Ownership Certificates”) of the Group with net book value of
RMB820,701,000 (2015: RMB645,552,000) had not been obtained
by the Group. Prepaid land lease payments with a net book value of
approximately RMB401,822,000 (2015: RMB419,426,000) have no land
use rights certificates. The directors of the Company consider that there
is no legal restriction for the Group to apply for and obtain the Building
Ownership Certificates and the land use rights certificate. It should not

lead to any significant adverse impact on the operations of the Group.

DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The movements in deferred income tax assets and liabilities during the
six months ended 30 June 2016, without taking into consideration the

offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

1) Deferred income tax assets

A I S
2016 2015
ANRHTFoc ANRBTT
RMB’000 RMB'000
RBEY FNE
Unaudited Unaudited
JA—F— H 0 45 8% Opening balance at 1 January 18,146 61,906
i i A BERE (S 8) Credited/(charged) to profit 3,828 (40,508)
N H =4 H R 46k Closing balance at 30 June 21,974 21,398

VY R B A AR A
2016 ' ) #
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For the six months ended 30 June 2016

7. BREPEHL () 7. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Continued)
2) EERBERAR 2)  Deferred income tax liabilities
TR NG B ST
2016 2015
N ANRHT 7T
RMB000 RMB 000
REEEY: ARRF
Unaudited Unaudited
- — A — H i I 45 ik Opening balance at 1 January 125,876 130,390
A (BT S8 (Credited)/charged to profit (2,591) 2,641
FAR A BB Payment of withholding tax (37,000) —
75 H =1 H A A R Closing balance at 30 June 86,285 133,031
8. Hfth EWEE K 8. OTHER RECEIVABLES
i
As at
TR AR —E—TAE
AH=Z+H +ZA=1+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
N ARHFT T
RMB’000 RMB000
Unaudited Audited
JRE N — R Bt /A W) I Amount receivable from an associate 4,000 —
JRE i B A% A ) b B B S Y g5 AT PR A A The receivable from an associate, Beijing Ruiye Drugs Manufacture Co.
(T RS2 ) A s AL s B Led. (“Beijing Ruiye”), was secured by 10% share of Beijing Ruiye’s
) I T S 2 AR i B B A R AT A A parent company, Beijing Ruiye Economic Technology Development Co.,
B 109% B VESER IR 2B —F— JLAFE | Ltd. and repayable on 8 May 2019. Interest is charged at 5% annually.

HNH R o FIBIEE 5% 518 -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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For the six months ended 30 June 2016

9. 5 MIAbREHIRK 9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
iy
As at
TR AN —“EF-hF
AH=Z+H +ZA=1+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ARHToc AR¥TF T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REFEY REY
Unaudited Audited
B 5 IR — B = Trade receivables — third parties 83,378 99,512
T Notes receivables 339,038 426,254
TE AT AL R Prepayments to suppliers 129,418 112,513
JE WS — FH A 7] E (a) Amount receivable from an associate (a) 12,000 25,953
WL — R A& A 2EFH (b) Amount receivable from a joint venture (b) 72,834 71,167
JEU R (o) Dividends receivables (c) 40,000 —
At B B Other receivables 70,321 185,689
AR Prepaid value added tax — 45,782
UGS Prepaid income tax — 5,397
746,989 972,267
@ RF—ANFEAA=TH Bl (@)  The receivable from an associate, Xi'an Tengyun Network
FWS N ) TG % e 2404 BLH A TR Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Tengyun”), with an amount of
AR REE ) —EHIAS RMB12,000,000 as at 30 June 2016, was unsecured and repayable
R N R 12,000,000 7C £ SEHE R on 28 July 2016. Interest is charged at 4.35% annually.

RIBR = FE—NEEA T NHE
o FBRBE435% 58

b) ER—FEE LN ENES (b) The amount receivable from a joint venture, Jilin Sichang
PR ] ([ 35 MDY |) i ZOE 45 A Pharmaceutical Co., Ltd. (“Jilin Sichang”), including a loan
R 69,400,000 7 B 4 e A principal of RMB69,400,000 and interest amounting to
B3 434,000 70 B A B - B HEIE RMB3,434,000, was unsecured and repayable in full on demand.
PR 7 R R BB R o F R4 Interest is charged at 4.75% annually.
F4.75% 58 o

© BB —-ZoBEACESEKNUE () Dividends receivable represent the dividend from the joint venture,
Mo E—HAEEERZEL - Jilin Sichang declared for the year 2015.

VY R B A AR A
2016 ' ) #



54

0 TR I e B A R

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ-ANEAAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

9. HH MM (4

SR 53 0 0 250 T O
KESHHTABERER - BE R
1 T L B S 19 o R 7
il -

S B 585 5 8 TR R

AEEEZ T E O FEEH T — M
AZE—4 « B BIURFER FZHA

9. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Trade and other receivables that are neither past due nor impaired are
assessed referring to historical information about default rates, reputation,

liquidity and other financial information of the counterparties.

Most sales of the Group were settled by advance from customers. The
Group’s credit terms granted to certain customers range from one month

to one year. The ageing analysis of the trade receivables based on invoice

H W HREE AT an T date is as follows:
S
As at

ZEAHE R T
AA=Z1TH +-HA=1+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
AR ANRETFT
RMB 000 RMB 000
REEY BEN
Unaudited Audited

B 5 REW R K Trade Receivables
34E H AN Within 3 months 82,677 69,007
3 & 6 A 3 to 6 months 130 116
62121 A 6 to 12 months 52 6,745
1218 A A & More than 12 months 519 23,644
83,378 99,512
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For the six months ended 30 June 2016

10. Wt LpERE 10. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
e =
2016 2015
AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEY REM
Unaudited Audited
& —H— H R 45 Opening balance at 1 January 1,959,280 1,617,631
NE Additions 4,529,000 8,567,986
i Disposals (4,014,000) (8,204,600)
A g R Net gain from change in fair value
AN TEE BT s of available-for-sale financial assets 9,831 11,444
7S A =+ H IR A Closing balance at 30 June 2,484,111 1,992,461
At ESEEEAEMUT Available-for-sale financial assets represent the following:
i
As at
RN CERAF
AA=+H  +ZA=t+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ARW T ARHT T
RMB’000 RMB000
REHFY REN
Unaudited Audited
EREd < Short-term investments 2,484,111 1,959,280

VOB A AR A RA A
2016 ' ) #
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BEZZ-ANEAAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

10. w4k i 45 S Y A (A7)

11.

% N SEAR 5 30 7S A F T () 3 RO [ 2
A T o B B A SR AT R B B A
L) 9 4 T R AR I -
EH N RWEFHE -

FEE 2 N AR T BT A T R
£377%( ZF—TH4E 1 4.0%)5HE o

i G E R R N =g A <
MR TE (H ©

R e i A S 0 g 19 T R o B R
B B R ] 2% AR Bt ak (B )
B I R UL R Y I S R T
fil o 355 4 T e SR I 0 R A R A

5 FH e i w4

10.

11.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
(Continued)

The amount represents short-term investments placed in certain PRC
state-owned banking institutions and reputable international financial
institutions outside of PRC with maturity within 6 months and non-

fixed return rate. These investments are all denominated in RMB.

The fair values of these investments are based on average estimated return
rate of 3.77% (2015: 4.0%).

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying

value of these investments.

The credit quality of available-for-sale financial assets that are neither past
due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if
available) or to historical information of counterparty default rates. None

of these financial assets is either past due or impaired.

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

7

As at
S “EF R
AR=Z+H  +ZH=1—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
AR AR T
RMB000 RMB’000
RBEG BHE
Unaudited Audited
BB R AT Investments in associates 502,637 470,503
HER—FEEME Investment in a joint venture 701,273 718,615
1,203,910 1,189,118
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@) REEA

GilioE e <y

BE_Z—ANEANAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

11. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

(a) Investments in associates

ZRNE R

2016 2015

AR#F AR¥TF

RMB’000 RMB000

REBEE RAESHAN

Unaudited Unaudited

i—H— B8t Opening balance at 1 January 470,503 358,491
W E AR E (5 Q) Capital contributions to associates (Note (i)) 65,563 102,720
RSB N 7 (T Gi)) Establishment of associates (Note (ii)) 3,050 —

UG R A R AR PR A W Disposal of Beijing Eazy-Tek Bio-
(TR R AR R 1) (B EE (i) Technology Co., Ltd. (“Beijing Eazy-

Tek Bio-Tech”) (Note (iii)) (26,485) —
JREAY B/ ) s 1R Share of loss of associates (9,994) (9,748)
N A =1 B IR 4 6k Closing balance at 30 June 502,637 451,463

()

(if)

(iii)

RZFE—REZH 7«&%@!‘11‘
FERER A R A ([
#El) {fi%f}\&m),%s,ooon: H
H138.196 HE 4 H A R T HEE A

W ENEZH s REFEUE
G B R 50,0000 78 1 P i
TRBEBAARAR (TR
F ) 49.0% M0 BHE - To 83
LA 85 5 =y R o PR
F B S BT AR

ATl AR e B AR

REFE—NERNA » REBDIB
S AUE AR 3,000, 0007[”!4%/@‘1
MEZHEEEARAF ( TH
MEZEE] ) ss.o%ﬂﬁtfféo/@‘t
N7 2 A7 Y 0 1 B B0 B
B B IR ~ B IR K
BT o

RZE—NENH > AEE L E
JEHT1R B AE R 92439 IR HE
A i AR 3,851,000 014 %

Notes:

(i) In February 2016, the Group injected capital of RMB65,563,000 into
Renfang Medical Holdings Ltd. (“Renfang Medical”), of which 38.1%

interest was owned by the Company intermediately.

(ii) In March 2016, the Group subscribed 49.0% equity interest in Xi'an
Tengyun Network Technology Co., Ltd. (“Xi’an Tengyun”) at a cash
consideration of RMB50,000 for its establishment with other independent
third parties. The principal activities of Xi'an Tengyun are technology
promotion, technology service, technology consultation service and

technology transfer service.

In June 2016, the Group subscribed a 33.0% equity interest in Hangzhou
Junanyoudao Network Co., Ltd. (“Hangzhou Junanyoudao”) at a cash
consideration of RMB3,000,000. The principal activities of Hangzhou
Junanyoudao are technology development, technology service, technology

consultation service and technology transfer service.

(iii)  In June 2016, the Group disposed of a 24.3% equity interest in Beijing
Eazy-Tek Bio-Tech. The disposal gain amounting to RMB3,851,000 was

recognised in the current period.

W REEA R A
2016 ' ) #
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BEZZ—ANEAH=ZTHIEAMEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

11. MEHRERERITENERE(HE) 11

INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD (Continued)

b R—FeBELENRE (b) Investment in a joint venture
ZER A “F-hEF
2016 2015
ANBRH T AR BT IT
RMB’000 RMB 000
R KRR
Unaudited Unaudited
i—H— B &t Opening balance at 1 January 718,615 —
SR J 3T RO R 1 42 o Loss of control over Jilin Sichang — 637,500
EEIRIKE Dividends declared (40,000) —
JEAK 7 8 4 2 3 Rl Share of profit of joint venture 22,658 21,619
A A = B B 4 Closing balance at 30 June 701,273 659,119
12. Hﬁl‘i&ﬂﬁ'ﬁ}“@?&% 12. SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
JBe A % H A ey At
Number of Share Share
Shares capital  premium Total
(F&) AREFT ARETFILT ARETIL
(in thousands)  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB000
REHFEE RREHR RRER REER
Unaudited  Unaudited ~ Unaudited = Unaudited
RE-B—HER RN As at 1 January 2015 and
—H—H (&%) 2016 (audited)
(88 0.0130) (HK$0.01 per Share) 10,364,182 85,610 5,574,848 5,660,458
H I s B IR (B E ) Repurchase and cancellation
of shares (Note (1)) (58,633) (484) (81,272) (81,756)
R-F-ANEANA=TH As at 30 June
(REHEH) 2016 (unaudited)
(5t 0.01¥78) (HK$0.01 per Share) 10,305,549 85,126 5,493,576 5,578,702
BtaE - Note:
0 Mo E-NENH  ANT E B (i) In June 2016, the Company repurchased 58,633,000 of its own Shares of on the

Jir B Tl Ho 58,633,000 B M £ > A 48
%96,461,229% 0 (M #H K AR
o ANFENF

81,756,0007C)
NHESEZE RS

— N4

Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$96,461,229 (equivalent to
RMB81,756,000). These Shares were cancelled by the Company in June 2016

accordingly.
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13. DA 2 BE B 9 £k

(1)

B Ay 5 I -

Byl A0 ) 8 SRR 4 (LA B > A
)25 TR (B Plenty Gold) ~ Hif§
THE A R AR E) E R % —
FETAZ R HR{—HE ]
# ([ E B AR SR 1) - i =%
—=F—HAZFHH  ARFER S
— &5 (B MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V.) I8N 2 BL{E B B 3 4 ) =t %) -
X RE N T (32 i B 4 A 1 AL
i FA NA5 FEA > B Plency Gold
2EEA)CEREAZEAN > B
1518 B 15Oy 58 I8 w1 ) 5 A B ik
ff  Plenty Gold ~ HLIG T 5 A K 25
HERE A (EAEREMMER T A)
C W8 K& 333,750,000
JBAs 5 T MSPEA Pharma Holdings
B.V. T B R 4 th 8 41 3,750,000 %
JBefn o BT A w4 % IR 2 Rt AL
AR AR B I 5 Bt 3 DA REA
i SRR o {8 R SE Bt 3
Bedz i i 32 sE N A R BRI
- A E AR IR 5 50 48 )t 8
BATHIRAD -

7 R AR 7 LA PSR A5 10
WA EHE - FHRIVE R R
Ak M5 - T A 4 A 1 2
S o AR - AR A EAR
R AR B 73 4% Bt BB AT R4
R DR 4 B9 58 i st 38 1
FEBCA AR 7 U R 2

MR B By SE Myt &) - 2 547
TAEBGERER  ATHMEE R
AT RS AT AR R AT B A
AR BB (R H R =
CLH5% i 9 4 B 4% D J 3 300 1 0
H]) 45 E 19 % E N R F A B A
WA ERE o BT EER
MR 2 TR (N PR —
ERH)ZRTURE > AKA
T 2 H R R R AT RS -

BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

@)

Share award scheme

An award scheme for the purpose of incentivising the management
of the Company (the “Employees Share Award Scheme”) has
been adopted by certain shareholders of the Company (namely,
Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng) on
25 October 2010. On 25 January 2013, another shareholder of
the Company (namely, MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V.) also
participated in the Employees Share Award Scheme. Trustee Co., (a
private trust company established in the British Virgin Islands and
wholly owned by Plenty Gold) has been appointed as the trustee to
hold the reserved shares under the Employees Share Award Scheme.
Plenty Gold, Dr. Che Fengsheng and Dr. Guo Weicheng, as
settlors of a trust, have reserved and set aside a total of 33,750,000
Shares; and MSPEA Pharma Holdings B.V. has reserved and set
aside an addition of 3,750,000 Shares, all of which are being held
by the Trustee Co., as trustee for the Employees Share Award
Scheme. The Employees Share Award Scheme involves granting of
existing Shares held by the Trustee Co., and no new Shares will be

issued pursuant to the Employees Share Award Scheme.

The Company measures the services received from its employees
in accordance with the requirements applicable to equity-settled
share-based payment transactions, with a corresponding increase
recognised in equity as other reserve. No new Share will be issued
by the Company under the Employees Share Award Scheme and
there is no dilution impact to earnings per share calculation as a

result of the Employees Share Award Scheme.

Under the Employees Share Award Scheme, awards were granted
to the eligible employees of the Group, which are exercisable into
the specific number shares of the Company after the employees
paid the exercised consideration to certain shareholders, held by
the Trustee Co., designated in each financial year during the period
from the grant date up to the expiry date of the relevant awards
granted. Options granted become vested after certain employment
periods ranging from one to five years, while the grantees are

required to complete the service till the vesting date.

VYR B 4 R AR A R A F
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13. DA AD % SE 0 B 1R (48 ) 13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continucd)
G) B sEmEhEr R (4E) (1)  Share award scheme (Continued)
AL TR B D b iy 4 The summary of the above share awards which have been granted
B BEZE T to certain employees of the Group is as follows:
TR B [REi3
HEIRNAT B 5 B i3 5 I 8 H
WIT (F47)

Exercise price  Number of share

per share award ~ awards granted

B HH Grant date HKS$ (in thousands)
CER-CHEEATTH(TERTEAD 20 March 2012 (“Option A”) 3.19 14,150
ZERE-EHFAAZTEH(ERREB]) 27 September 2013 (“Option B”) 3.19 19,750
—F = AZ - H(WBAEC)) 21 October 2013 (“Option C") 0.70 2,050
35,950
MARNABRRR -F—NERA=+H With the approval of the Company’s shareholders at the annual
BT BOROA R B AE - RO general meeting held on 30 May 2014, a bonus issue of share (the
ALBCEEAT (TRLBCBAT 1) & =% — 0 4F “Bonus Issue”) was made on the basis of 1 bonus share for every
AR = H 2B A R A R 1 Share held by the shareholders whose names appeared on the
AR L BRI 1 TRALIR © B RAL IR register of members of the Company on 13 June 2014. As a result
AT > CHARGRIE BB O SR At B2 ik of the Bonus Issue, adjustments had been made to the number of
{10 6 By AT (A S B B £ et AT the then outstanding share awards granted under the Employees
B Share Award Scheme as follows:
AL B AT AL B AT1R
Before Bonus Issue After Bonus Issue
T g oA o
SEEATHE ROEMEE SR ROEmEA
ot (F4r) o (F1)
Number Number
Exercise of share Exercise of share
price per awards price per awards
share award granted  share award granted
B HEH Grant date HK$ (in thousands) HK$ (in thousands)
~E—4FZHA-+A 20 March 2012 3.19 2,084 3.19 4,167
“E-ZENH LR 27 September 2013 3.19 18,066 3.19 36,133
“F—=F+H=+—H 21 October 2013 0.70 2,050 0.70 4,100
22,200 44,400
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13. PABCAR A BERE Bk (A7)

(1)

(ii)

B3 S B ) ()
WoFE—ANENA AR &
5 234 4 1 B AEH 0T 58 B (T 597 58
B 1) - 45 A RE AR B R 3T B
FHE 2 H A DAAT (0 0 I
JB 6y 1.57 % ot 1) % 5E A A & 3t
31,448,172 A R B 0.01 T Z
AN TG e B A SE B N4
234 4 4 B A% 38 Il 1 i oF: s G 038
W B T HRE A BB HE B o

BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(1)  Share award scheme (Continued)

On 28 June 2016, 234 employees of the Group were granted new
awards (“New Awards”) entitling them to acquire an aggregate
of 31,448,172 ordinary shares with par value of HK$0.01 each of
the Company from the trustee for the purpose of the Employees
Share Award Scheme at an exercise price of HK$1.57 per Option
Share on the condition that the 234 employees of the Group will
surrender Option A and Option B where the options were not

vested and forfeited.

(g i AR B

SR AT O H BEmHA

i (F)

Exercise price  Number of share

per share award  awards granted

= HH Grant date HK$ (in thousands)
ZFENEARHZANH (GBS 28 June 2016 (New Awards) 1.57 31,448
31,448

ey 52 I 5 )
GESFGHULIEE S EEE
A B Y4947 BT

(i) Share awards movement

Movements in the number of share awards outstanding and their

related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

TR I B
AT
#T
exercise price B A7 5
per share (T4)
award Share awards
ife JBEHEE A Option A HKS$ (in thousands)
I =T
2016 2015
#—H—H At 1 January 3.19 4,167 4,167
ERCTIER ) Modified to New Awards 3.19 (4,167) —
WAH=1H At 30 June — 4,167

VY R B A AR A
2016 ' ) #
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13. PABCAR A BERE Bk (A7)

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

Gi) A SEEIAE ) (4 (i) Share awards movement (Continued)
T ey S
I AT
T
Average
exercise price B 53 5 I
per share (F17)
award Share awards
i I HE B Option B HKS$ (in thousands)
o e T
2016 2015
“—H—H At 1 January 3.19 28,668 28,668
28k Forfeited 3.19 (1,387) —
18 o0 T S Modified to New Awards 3.19 (27,281) —
WARH=1+H At 30 June — 28,668
B ey S
AT
WIT
Average
exercise price JBe 453 58 h
per share (F1)
award Share awards
i IR B Option C HKS$ (in thousands)
“RAE CFEHE
2016 2015
Mm—H—H At 1 January 0.70 4,100 4,100
E &K Forfeited 0.70 (4,100) —
WAH=+H At 30 June = 4,100

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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13. DARBCADY 2 REWE B Ak (4
(i) Mt sEmnsEs) (A7)

BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

13. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT (Continued)

(i) Share awards movement (Continued)

A A S
P AT EAE
Wt
Average
exercise price B 53 5 I
per share (F17)
award Share awards
B 5% New Awards HK$ (in thousands)
R AN TR
2016 2015
NZFE—NEARHZH/\HE > Granted on 28 June 2016
VeI RE A T IS REHE B 1Y as modification to
Bk Option A and Option B 1.57 31,448 —
EATE Exercised 1.57 (2,333) -
RAA=+H At 30 June 29,115 —

REF—ANEAA =T H MR
RO S 25 I R AT R AT

Share awards outstanding as at 30 June 2016 have the following

expiry dates and exercise prices:

TR B A SE D T AR BRI
it JBe Ay A M ¥ H
#t (1)
Exercise price
per share Number of outstanding
award share awards granted
2R ENER:] Expiry date HK$ (in thousands)
“R-RE CEHE
2016 2015
“EF—tLEZAF—H 21 March 2017 3.19 - 4,167
“F =) ENLAZHRH 26 September 2018 0.70 — 4,100
ZEZ =) ENLAZHARH 26 September 2018 3.19 — 28,668
SR AR ZANH 28 June 2021 1.57 29,115 —
29,115 36,935

WEZE—ANEASNA=ZTHIEAMA -
A5 ) HE R AR BB 48 = B 1 1 1 5
JEh BH 2 A N B W 2,297,000 70 (B & =%
—HENA=ZTHIEAMA : AR¥
6,805,000 7C) °

The Company recognised share awards expense of RMB2,297,000
under the Employees Share Award Scheme during the six-
month ended 30 June 2016 (Six-month ended 30 June 2015:
RMB6,805,000).

VY R B A AR A
2016 ' ) #
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BEZZ-ANEAAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

14. B 50 Je LAt e 5f ek

14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

64

iy
As at
TR ANE R R
AH=Z+HH  +FZA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ANR¥TF 7T AR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
R REY,
Unaudited Audited
B 5 REAH IR (H5E () Trade payables (Note (i) 143,775 72,624
 JEEARNIE 5 Advance from customers 207,603 203,174
Payables for construction and purchase
B ARt s e ARG PR B T of equipment 66,787 76,844
Amount due to other related parties

A7 LA BT 6 O R (B E: i) (Note (i) 7,800 24,834
JEASS — R W i) 3 TE (B AT (i) Amount due to an associate (Note (ii)) 25,168 6,600
JEA—F A8 A 2 E (5T (i) Amount due to a joint venture (Note (ii)) 4,481 4,481
JE A+t 4 4 Deposit payables 159,822 155,756
JREART M Dividend payables 463,750 —
JREAST 3 85 R 19 JRE - Accrued reimbursement to distributors 53,862 38,327
JRE AR LA B TE Other taxes payable 51,404 5,074
e #r Salaries payables 25,482 26,816
Fo At AT HR R Other payables 84,772 49,778
1,294,706 664,308

MRE - Notes:

(@) E o EAT RSN R 6 46,848,0007C (=%
AR 0 NEH37,950,00000) FEELIEE
B B T JRE AT 4 (B MR R 193K

TH o

Gi)  FENTEABOT - B A R RAE IR
GBS KRR -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.

(i) Trade payables of RMB46,848,000 (2015: RMB37,950,000) are payable to Jilin

Sichang, a joint venture, for purchasing of pharmaceutical products.

(i1) The amounts to related parties, associates and joint venture are interest-free,

unsecured and repayable on demand.

Interim Report 2016
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BE=F AN = H AN
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

- B9 BRI A Rk () 14. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)
NoE—NENA=ZTH B8 EMNE As at 30 June 2016, the ageing analysis of the trade payables based on
AR B 2B HL H R ERES A AR invoice date is as follows:

S
As at
R NE “EF—RF
AA=ZFHE FZHA=1—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
AR ANREF T
RMB 000 RMB 000
RBEW RHENG
Unaudited Audited
$ 5 HE A Mk Trade payables
6 AN Within 6 months 137,378 70,488
6% 121# A 6 to 12 months 4,315 80
14ERL E More than 1 year 2,082 2,056
143,775 72,624

VOB A AR A RA A
2016 ' ) #
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BEZZ-ANEAAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

15. HAbE AR 15. OTHER LIABILITIES
iy
As at
TR NE —E A
AH=Z+HH  +FZA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ANR¥TF 7T AR#T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
R REY,
Unaudited Audited
58 0 B HE P R AE A () Deferred revenue for sale of
distribution rights (a) 82,885 77,831
HEAE BN B (b) Deferred government grants (b) 16,492 35,284
99,377 113,115
W B AR Less: Current portion
885 73 BHHE A AR JE LA (a) Deferred revenue for sale of
distribution rights (a) 36,731 34,156
AR AL R A B (b) Deferred government grants (b) 2,105 17,739
38,836 51,895
B R Non-current portion 60,541 61,220
@@  HAEHE S TR R T (@) It represents the cash advances from distributors for the sale
G SH T B SHHEE 5 S AR RO B B of distribution rights of certain pharmaceutical products to
X o R 4R H AR AR AR AR AR distributors for 5 years. The revenue is recognised in the profit and
i e loss account on a straight line basis.
(b)y  HIGTR BRI E - FRE KA ik (b) It represents the deferred income of government grants received for
I B Hi B AR AE A o R AR the construction of property, plant and equipment. It is credited
B R AE % B AR AR R to the profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the
AR AR expected lives of the related assets.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
Interim Report 2016
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16. OPERATING PROFIT

B 25 A i

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ A

FEAAZTHIEAMEA

For the six months ended 30 June 2016

An analysis of the amounts presented as operating items in the financial

information is given below.

BEANA=ZTHIEAMEA

Six months ended 30 June

“ER N B S TR
2016 2015

AR T AR T
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBEY RACEY
Unaudited Unaudited

e Sales of pharmaceutical products 1,379,678 1,773,521

SR B B BB i £ Revenue from general hospital services 7,994 —

Wz Revenue 1,387,672 1,773,521

A3 B HE Sale of distribution right 22,017 19,166

A& UA Rental income 1,716 655

A Other income 23,733 19,821

R — D R 2 ) P i i Gain on disposal of a subsidiary — 547,048

R A Bl (BFEE (0)) Government grants (Note (i)) 119,361 64,160

T fE g (B2 i) Compensation gains (Note (ii)) 34,073 —

B A (P SE diid)) Impairment of assets(Note (iii)) 9,226) —

B — TG 7 A R i i Gain on disposal of associate 3,851 —

HAth Others 2,252 4,048

oAb ezs — 4 Other gains — net 150,311 615,256

RYE 3 Depreciation and amortization 130,661 107,542

R A B 35 PR AS M5 Amortisation of deferred development costs 14,513 13,378

W B 2 Research and development expenses 59,832 94,317

Fff 3% Notes:

(i) FoAM 2 W A B v B K PR Y £ THBURE (i) Various government grants have been received for tax refunds in Mainland China.
B o 14 2R S AR B 2 D Y L SRR A Government grants received for which related expenditure has not yet been
FEAMBIRILFAEIE R ATE © S B 5% undertaken are included in deferred income in the statement of financial position.
S5l B R 1) A I R ARk s A R I There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these grants.

Gi)  WEKEEE SR ERREEERARA (i) The compensation gains represented the compensation paid by Nanjing Zhonglei
) [R5 Al 9 ST — JE 3 T ok T S A5 O 4 Medical Industry Development Co., Ltd. because of its failure to comply with the
& - investment agreement.

(i) ER TS BB R R A 5 - A IO B (iii)  Due to the change of the market and technical factors, the Group cancelled the
Jo T A R R T T 4 T 4 B development of certain project and provided fully impairment for the related net
- book value.

W REEA R A
2016 ' ) #
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
BE—% AkAASHEANA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

17. BBt b 3 17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE
AEBBE B -NER T —HEN The income tax expense of the Group for the six months ended 30 June
H =+ B k758 B #8453 88 B 5220 4 i 2016 and 2015 is analysed as follows:
s BEAA=FHIEARA
Six months ended 30 June
TR A e e i
2016 2015
ANBRH T AR T T
RMB000 RMB 000
R KR
Unaudited Unaudited
BRI Current tax:
S A Vi ) ) B A0 o 2 Current tax on profits for the period 178,935 197,385
B i v 4 R Total current tax 178,935 197,385
IRIERLIA - Deferred tax:
Wiy 72 B AR R Origination and reversal of
1| temporary differences (6,419) 43,149
A% LA I A AR Total deferred tax (6,419) 43,149
Fi A At B 52 Income tax expense 172,516 240,534
(@) FifsFipE% (@ Income tax expense
() EEENER (i)  Bermuda profits tax
4 325 F AL 5 B — N AR No profit was subject to any taxation in Bermuda for the six
K oE—HENAZTHIE months ended 30 June 2016 and 2015.
AN R TE T 5 AN AT T
B -

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
Interim Report 2016
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17. FrfaRipa 2 (44)
(a) FrARBLPAL (A4)

(ii)

(ii1)

(iv)

BB
AEBREE T —AF R
SE—REAASTR A
1AL S 75 7 2 L
WA o

o 4 S B AR (1 v o e 3
Pt ))

A v B R o A6 7 £ 7 4 I
J& 2~ 7 B AR 3 AR 3t
0 1 3 BT A5 B 3% ) 4% 25%
(OFi7E S VS CLEE R
B o

7R S T Y A B T R
ra R ER - H
AN 2 i) FAR) s
—NAEHE 15% BB B
PRSP -

AR B s 1 v B A
AR e B RS A A
B S AR —EE
JNAE— H — H % 2 A= 1 A
1) B 5 3 4 UK B S ZE A
N 10% TR o fif Sh B 4%
B vk AL H
[ L 34 T O Y O A
TR AR B E - A B
FABRE 10% W2 5% -

BE_Z—ANEANAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

17. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued)

(a) Income tax expense (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Hong Kong profits tax
The Group had no assessable profit arising in Hong Kong
for the six months ended 30 June 2016 and 2015.

PRC corporate income tax (“PRC CIT”)

The subsidiaries of the Group operated in Mainland
China have determined and paid corporate income tax in
accordance with the Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC

at a tax rate of 25%.

Certain PRC subsidiaries of the Group were qualified as
high-tech enterprises. Accordingly, those subsidiaries’
corporate income tax for 2016 is provided at a preferential

tax rate of 15%.

PRC withholding tax on retained profits

According to applicable PRC tax regulations, dividends
distributed by a company established in the PRC to a foreign
investor with respect to profits derived after 1 January 2008
are subject to a 10% withholding tax. If a foreign investor
is incorporated in Hong Kong and meets the conditions
or requirements under the Double Taxation Arrangement
entered into between the PRC and Hong Kong, the relevant

withholding tax rate is reduced to 5% from 10%.

VYR B 4 R AR A R A F
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BEZZ-ANEAAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

18. R EF 18. EARNINGS PER SHARE
(a) HEA (@) Basic
BEZF-ANERZF—TEANH Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
= H k7S B A 5 A 4 attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent by the
ISR RS A A EAG T R IR DA weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue for the six
B 854798 AT 1 e A o months ended 30 June 2016 and 2015.
WEAA=ZTHIEAEA
Six months ended 30 June
TR NG B S TR
2016 2015
RBEY RACEY
Unaudited Unaudited
(EYNCIRLF L ESRER DN Profit attributable to ordinary equity
JRE A 385 1 (A R % F-0) holders of the parent (RMB’000) 735,968 1,451,550
AR R A 2 AT 5 7Y Weighted average number of ordinary
EBIT K shares in issue for basic earnings
TRESF-£4) FB 8 (T %) per share (000) 10,361,852 10,364,182
B I A R Basic earnings per share
(F I N4 ) (RMB cents per share) 7.10 14.01
(b) M (b) Diluted
HREBE-Z—AFEAA=THI There is no dilution to earnings per share for the period because
PN VA S 487 A Y A there was no potential dilutive ordinary shares issuance existing for
e A IR S 0 e R R R the six months ended 30 June 2016. The diluted earnings per share
FECHE V23 AR S TR SR A 2 A o equals the basic earnings per share.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
Interim Report 2016
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F R IR ST v A S S 2 A
AR 1450 (CF—F4E
ANR¥1.445)

BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

19. DIVIDEND

BEAA=THIEAMA

Six months ended 30 June

e = S
2016 2015
AR #HF NR BT
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBE RRE
Unaudited Unaudited
Proposed interim dividend of RMB1.4 cents
(2015: RMB1.4 cents) per ordinary share 140,228 145,099

HEHEER _F—-HFEANA=ZT—HER
REBRZE_F—HFEAA=ZTHIEAM
HEh s B m B AR 144 - HR =
FE—THELMA 2R TP 22—
AL A R FIAR S F R A A
N TR o

BE-Z-HE+-A=t+—HILFEE
11 A A P S R N RSB 45 2 (B 3R AR
5 463,750,000 70 ) B JE AR R =& — N
B A AN H BT AR ) R R A A
Ke EHOEN N —FE—AFLH+=H
TRFFE-ANELHEAZIALNF
i 3R 42 1 ) BB o

EEER T -ANEAA S =ZHE#E
REALNADHREERARK 142
(BEZF-HLFEAA=THIEAMEA
BRARWL49) - HR ZF—REL
A+ HHSHZ ST T F—RELA
JUR BB A R4 T A8 /I BOR ©

An interim dividend of RMB 1.4 cents per Share for the six months
ended 30 June 2015 was proposed by the Board on 31 August 2015. It is
payable on 23 September 2015 to shareholders of the Company who were
on the register of members of the Company on 17 September 2015.

A final dividend of RMB 4.5 cents per Share for the year ended 31
December 2015, amounting to RMB463,750,000 in total, was approved
by the shareholders at the annual general meeting of the Company held
on 28 June 2016 and was paid on 13 July 2016 to shareholders whose
names appeared on the register of members of the Company on 7 July
2016.

An interim dividend of RMB 1.4 cents per Share of the Company (for
the six months ended 30 June 2015: RMB1.4 cents per Share) was
proposed by the Board on 23 August 2016. It is payable on or around 15
September 2016 to shareholders of the Company who are on the register

of members of the Company on 9 September 2016.

VYR B 4 R AR A R A F

2016 ' ) #
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BE—% AkAASHEANA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

20. 7RI 20. COMMITMENTS
(a) BEAAKYE (a) Capital commitments
PG ERE RTLHEM R EANE Capital commitments contracted for at the end of the reporting
AAREIT period but not yet incurred are as follows:
iy
As at
ZERE CERAE
AR=Z+H  +tZH=1—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ANR¥TFIT ABHT T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEY REY
Unaudited Audited
YIZE ~ R JE A Property, plant and equipment 179,508 216,475
BOMEE I BH Commitment of additional capital
) 7R3 injection to Renfang Medical — 156,124
& E Intangible assets
— BB - product development in progress 62,844 142,263
242,352 514,862

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
Interim Report 2016
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20. 7Y (%)

21.

(b)

AR RS

74 S L T L ok
HEETHAEYE - HEHRA
—EHAE > BRSO bk T 1
1 AR 59 L A4 =

AR T R A A B A B R

BEZFE—ANEAAZTHIEAEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

20. COMMITMENTS (Continued)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group leases various office premises under non-cancellable
operating lease agreements. The lease terms are between 1 and 5
years and the majority of lease agreements are renewable at the end

of the lease period at market price.

The future aggregate minimum lease payments under non-

AR BB cancellable operating leases are as follows:
i3
As at
VY-S e Sl TS
AR=Z+H  +ZH=+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
ABRH T ARBFIT
RMB000 RMB 000
REEG R
Unaudited Audited
—IEDIA No later than 1 year 16,612 16,235
—AEDL L HAERL A Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years 71,588 69,974
HAERL B Later than 5 years 52,213 61,962
140,413 148,171

BB 05 &8 5

AEE M Plency Gold (76358 jx 407 & 3T
AL ) #E Tl > Plenty Gold A 45/ ] i
319 46.50% © B T 53.50% IR 5 1 12 ¢
A o ALEEMIERBOR BB TR A -

(a)

WA, 4% 8 T LR 5 OB £

wh/ 4R MR

IR E ERGTH
Network Victory Limited 26 7t B 2 £ il

([ Network Victory )

ChE AEMHBE LA
ErsE AEENBEAA
H%ZEE AR AR
ELS ARAMAELR

B BB R LA I R P R 40
B 7 2 o AL AR

21. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Group is controlled by Plenty Gold (incorporated in the British
Virgin Islands), which owns 46.50% of the Company’s shares. The
remaining 53.50% of the Shares are widely held. The controlling
shareholder of the Group is Dr. Che Fengsheng.

(a) Name and relationship with related parties

Name Relationship

Dr. Che Fengsheng Chairman of the Board
Network Victory Limited ~ Controlled by Dr. Che Fengsheng
(“Network Victory”)

Renfang Medical Associate of the Group
Beijing Ruiye Associate of the Group

Xi'an Tengyun Associate of the Company
Jilin Sichang Joint venture of the Company

Save as disclosed in other notes to the financial statements, the

related party transactions are summarised as follows:

REEEREEARA A
2016 ' ) #
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BE—% AN = 1 B LA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

21. BRI 25 (%) 21. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)
(b) 3 A B T 4 (b) Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments

BEAA=1THIEAMA

Six months ended 30 June

TR A e S i
2016 2015
ANBRH T ARHT T
RMB000 RMB000
REEY R
Unaudited Unaudited
i Fees 1,433 812
Wiz Salary 3,296 4,082
SRt AL Performance bonuses — 28,800
4,729 33,694
(c) IR &t S B BRI O WA 5 (¢) Period-end balances and transactions with related
parties
BEAH=THIEAMA
Six months ended 30 June
“enE  CFHE
2016 2015
ANR¥T 7T ANR¥T T
RMB’000 RMB 000
REEY R
Unaudited Unaudited
1] 7 AR P = AL B K B Electricity and water supply to
Jilin Sichang 1,619 1,842
VR DU R R I R 4 E Purchase of pharmaceutical products
from Jilin Sichang 109,224 80,709

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
Interim Report 2016
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

BEZZ A

FEAAZTHIEAMEA

For the six months ended 30 June 2016

21. RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c) Period-end balances and transactions with related

(%) parties (Continued)
As at
RN —EAHE
AH=Z+TH  +FZA=+—H
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
AT ABH T
RMB’000 RMB 000
RBEY REY
Unaudited Audited
JRE i — [H] 5 %8 2 Rl FOH Amount due from a joint venture
—E kIR — Jilin Sichang 72,834 71,167
JRE AL 5 A ) 3R OH Amounts receivable from associates
— gk — Beijing Ruiye 4,000 =
—TiRZEE — Xi'an Tengyun 12,000 =
— Bk — Renfang Medical — 25,953
16,000 25,953
JRE A L Ath B i 7 3R Amounts due to other related parties
— BT RAE — Dr. Che Fengsheng 7,800 —
— Network Victory — Network Victory — 24,834
7,800 24,834
JRE A — [H] B ] O Amount due to a joint venture
—H MR — Jilin Sichang 4,481 4,481
B AN i 2 ) R OE Amounts due to associates
—demgi% — Beijing Ruiye — 6,600
— B — Renfang Medical 25,168 —
25,168 6,600

REEEREEARA A
2016 ' ) #
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BEZZ-ANEAAZTHIEAHEA
For the six months ended 30 June 2016

22. MBFEH

23.

(@)

(if)

HoZ—AFELANER A
FELHZ A AAFUARE
#1493,214,000 5 7T 15 i 22 7 fif ]
289,298,000 B B 17 » 7% % By £
W E—NAENA Z HEs -

REZF—AREANA AR ARF
A 9.5% Mt i — R BB~
Al B ST AE YA FRA R > A
e 2B /MR R R A
o

ol A 0

e UL
— AR F S R A R
HET -

22.

23.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

(i)  From 4 July 2016 to 22 July 2016, the Company repurchased
289,298,000 Shares through the Stock Exchange at a total
consideration of approximately HK$493,214,000. Such Shares
have been cancelled on 3 August 2016.

(i)  On 16 August 2016, Shanghai Lide Biotech Co., Ltd., an associate,
of which 9.5% interest was owned intermediately by the Company,
succeeded in listing on the National Equities Exchange and

Quotations.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 23 August
2016.

SIHUAN PHARMACEUTICAL HOLDINGS GROUP LTD.
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